
408 N. Third Ave | Stayton, OR 97383 | Phone 503-391-9927 | www.marionswcd.net 
 

 
 

Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (MSWCD) Administrative 
Committee Meeting 
Friday, January 19, 2024, 9:00 am to 11:00 am 

 
HB2560 requires that all Oregon public meetings held by a governing body of a public body, excluding executive sessions, 
must provide to members of the public an opportunity to access and attend the meeting by telephone, video or other 
electronic or virtual means. This meeting will be held by video conference and by telephone. 

 
  Link to Video Conference: (Zoom) Meeting Link Meeting Call 

in Number: 1 (253) 215 - 8782 
Meeting ID: 861 6125 6285| Passcode: 720019 

  Staff Contact: Brenda Sanchez, brenda.sanchez@marionswcd.net 
 

Agenda 
 

Chair: Call Meeting to Order, Agenda Changes & Approval 

Item # Topic Presenter Purpose Time 

1 Public Comment Chair 
 

Feedback 5 min. 

2 Review of October and November 2023 
Minutes 

Chair  Procedure 10 min. 

3 Continue Marion SWCD Policy Review Sanchez  Discussion 85 min. 

4 Pay Equity Analysis 2024 Report Sanchez  Discussion 20 min. 

 Meeting Adjournment Chair    

Agenda Brief 
Item # Brief   Action  

3 

Continue review of MSWCD policies to determine 
which need revisions, minor updates, etc.; 
prioritize identified policies and assign to staff for 
updates. Include Admin team’s suggestions of new 
policies (e.g., access to security camera log-in, POV 
use, District email on accounts—see list). 

Recommend policy work for Board 
approval 

4 
Review draft Pay Equity Report before submitting 
for legal review. Pending no significant changes, 
submit report to the Board in March. 

Approve Pay Equity Report for legal 
review, then submit for Board 
approval in March. 

Marion Soil and Water Conservation District complies with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA) and does 
not discriminate based on race, color, national origin, gender, religion, age, disability, political beliefs, sexual 
orientation, and marital or family status. If special physical, language, or other accommodations are needed for this 
meeting, please advise the District Manager at 503-391-9927 as soon as possible, and at least 48 hours in 
advance of the meeting. 

 
  

http://www.marionswcd.net/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86161256285?pwd=elNGL1AzcXlrVG9xTWhZV0YzNDF2QT09
mailto:brenda.sanchez@marionswcd.net


408 N. Third Ave | Stayton, OR 97383 | Phone 503-391-9927 | www.marionswcd.net 
 

Meeting Minutes 

Attendance 

Committee Members Present/Absent Staff Guests 
Peggy Hart    
Linda Lovett    
Angela Plowhead - Chair    
Darin Olson    
Brenda Sanchez    

    
 

 
4 | P ag e 

Call to Order: XX started meeting at  
Item # Minutes Action/ Vote Count 

1 Public Comment  
2 Review of October and November 2023 minutes  
3 Marion SWCD Policy Review  
4 Pay Equity Analysis 2024 Report  
 Meeting adjourned  

http://www.marionswcd.net/


408 N. Third Ave | Stayton, OR 97383 | Phone 503-391-9927 | www.marionswcd.net 
 

 
 

Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (MSWCD) Administrative 
Committee Meeting 
Monday, October 16, 2023, 8:30 am to 10:00 am 

 
HB2560 requires that all Oregon public meetings held by a governing body of a public body, excluding executive sessions, 
must provide to members of the public an opportunity to access and attend the meeting by telephone, video or other 
electronic or virtual means. This meeting will be held by video conference and by telephone. 

 
  Link to Video Conference: (Zoom) Meeting Link Meeting Call 

in Number: 1 (253) 215 - 8782 
Meeting ID: 861 6125 6285| Passcode: 720019 

  Staff Contact: Brenda Sanchez, brenda.sanchez@marionswcd.net 
 

Agenda 
 

Chair: Call Meeting to Order, Agenda Changes & Approval 

Item # Topic Presenter Purpose Time 

1 Public Comment Chair 
 

Feedback 5 min. 

2 Review of July 2023 Minutes Chair  Procedure 5 min. 

3 Revised Job Descriptions Sanchez  Discussion 10 min. 

4 Marion SWCD Policy Review Sanchez  Discussion 70 min. 

 Meeting Adjournment Chair    

Agenda Brief 
Item # Brief   Action  

3 

Office & Facility Coordinator and Financial 
Administrator Duties and Functions section of the 
job descriptions have been updated to reflect that 
currently the Office Coordinator is now part-time 
work and payroll duties and treasurer’s report was 
removed from the Financial Admin. 

Recommend updates for Board 
approval. 

         4 

The Admin Committee will review MSWCD 
policies to determine, as recommendations, 
policies that need revisions, minor updates, etc., 
which policies are priority and identify needed 
policy. 

Recommend policy work for Board 
approval. 

Marion Soil and Water Conservation District complies with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA) and does 
not discriminate based on race, color, national origin, gender, religion, age, disability, political beliefs, sexual 
orientation, and marital or family status. If special physical, language, or other accommodations are needed for this 
meeting, please advise the District Manager at 503-391-9927 as soon as possible, and at least 48 hours in 
advance of the meeting. 

 
 
  

http://www.marionswcd.net/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86161256285?pwd=elNGL1AzcXlrVG9xTWhZV0YzNDF2QT09
mailto:brenda.sanchez@marionswcd.net


408 N. Third Ave | Stayton, OR 97383 | Phone 503-391-9927 | www.marionswcd.net 
 

Meeting Minutes 

Attendance 

Committee Members Present/Absent Staff Guests 
Peggy Hart Present   

Linda Lovett Present (arr. 9:02)   
Angela Plowhead - Chair Present   

Darin Olson Absent   
Brenda Sanchez Present   

 
Call to Order: Sanchez started meeting at 8:35 
Item # Minutes Action/ Vote Count 

1 Public Comment None? 

2 
 
XX moved to accept July 21, 2023 minutes; XX 
seconded 

 
 

3 

Revised Job Descriptions – The Office and Facility 
Coordinator position title was changed to part-
time Office Coordinator, reflecting the focus on 
District administrative operations and reduced 
responsibility for maintenance of the office 
building. The percentage of time spent on job 
duties/functions was adjusted to accommodate 
this change and the reduction to part time. 
Proposed changes to the Financial Administrator 
position were tabled to allow flexibility in the 
position in case the Financial Administrator 
needed to take on payroll and Treasurer’s report 
duties in the future, such as in the absence of the 
District Manager. 
xx moved to …; xx seconded. 

Approved? 
 
 

4 

Marion SWCD Policy Review – The District has 
about 30 policies. Sanchez noted that districts are 
advised to review their policies annually to ensure 
that they are relevant and currant. However, 
MSWCD has not followed this practice, resulting 
in many out-of-date policies. Sanchez and Wilson 
put all existing policies into a binder and looked 
for what needs to be updated or archived. Once 
the policies needing changes are identified, they 
will be prioritized for review. The Admin 
Committee reviewed the policy binder through 
the Grants section and will continue from there at 
the next meeting. Suggestions included possibly 
putting some policies into a Directors’ Handbook 
and having the Natural Resources Committee 
review others. Plowhead suggested putting the 
date of the Admin Committee review on the 
policies that do not require changes. Sanchez said 
those dates could be added to the policy binder. 
The review also aims to identify new policies that 

Policies/Resolutions identified for 
revision and priority level: 
• Delegation of Authority 

(Priority) 
• Board Meeting Policy and 

Procedures (Priority)  
• Directors Travel (Moderate) 
• Ag Water Quality (Low) 
• City of Keizer Economic 

Development (Archive) 
• USDA Conservation Plan 

Review (Priority) 
• Disposing of Surplus Property 

(Low) 
• Financial Management 

(Priority) 
• Public Contracting Rules and 

Procedures 
• Reserve Fund – Abolish 

Building Fund (Archive) 

http://www.marionswcd.net/


408 N. Third Ave | Stayton, OR 97383 | Phone 503-391-9927 | www.marionswcd.net 
 

 
4 | P ag e 

 
 

need to be written, such a Wildfire Smoke policy, 
which is required by OSHA. 

• Reserve Fund – Abolish Vehicle 
Resolution (Archive) 

 Plowhead adjourned meeting at 9:32  

http://www.marionswcd.net/


408 N. Third Ave | Stayton, OR 97383 | Phone 503-391-9927 | www.marionswcd.net 
 

 
 

Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (MSWCD) Administrative 
Committee Meeting 
Friday, November 17, 2023, 8:30 am to 10:00 am 

 
HB2560 requires that all Oregon public meetings held by a governing body of a public body, excluding executive sessions, 
must provide to members of the public an opportunity to access and attend the meeting by telephone, video or other 
electronic or virtual means. This meeting will be held by video conference and by telephone. 

 
  Link to Video Conference: (Zoom) Meeting Link Meeting Call 

in Number: 1 (253) 215 - 8782 
Meeting ID: 861 6125 6285| Passcode: 720019 

  Staff Contact: Brenda Sanchez, brenda.sanchez@marionswcd.net 
 

Agenda 
 

Chair: Call Meeting to Order, Agenda Changes & Approval 

Item # Topic Presenter Purpose Time 

1 Public Comment Chair 
 

Feedback 5 min. 

2 Review of October 2023 Minutes Chair  Procedure 5 min. 

3 Continue Marion SWCD Policy Review Sanchez  Discussion 70 min. 

4 Salary Administration Plan updates Sanchez  Discussion 10 min. 

 Meeting Adjournment Chair    

Agenda Brief 
Item # Brief   Action  

3 

The Admin Committee will review MSWCD 
policies to determine, as recommendations, 
policies that need revisions, minor updates, etc., 
which policies are priority and identify needed 
policy. 

Recommend policy work for Board 
approval 

Marion Soil and Water Conservation District complies with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA) and does 
not discriminate based on race, color, national origin, gender, religion, age, disability, political beliefs, sexual 
orientation, and marital or family status. If special physical, language, or other accommodations are needed for this 
meeting, please advise the District Manager at 503-391-9927 as soon as possible, and at least 48 hours in 
advance of the meeting. 

 
 
  

http://www.marionswcd.net/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86161256285?pwd=elNGL1AzcXlrVG9xTWhZV0YzNDF2QT09
mailto:brenda.sanchez@marionswcd.net


408 N. Third Ave | Stayton, OR 97383 | Phone 503-391-9927 | www.marionswcd.net 
 

Meeting Minutes 

Attendance 

Committee Members Present/Absent Staff Guests 
Peggy Hart Absent   

Linda Lovett Present   
Angela Plowhead - Chair Present   

Darin Olson Present (9:22)   
Brenda Sanchez Present   

  Tom Wilson  
 
Call to Order: Sanchez started meeting at 8:39 
Item # Minutes Action/ Vote Count 

1 Public Comment None 
2 Review of October 2023 minutes Deferred to January meeting 

3 

Marion SWCD Policy Review – Committee picked 
up from October meeting at Grants section of 
policy binder. Discussed need to align when we 
have policies vs. resolutions: some topics have a 
policy and a resolution adopting them while others 
have a policy and no resolution or vice versa. 
Plowhead also noted that some resolutions are 
tied to an OAR with a particular date, and those 
OARs have been revised since our policies/ 
resolutions were written. She suggested revising 
policies to reference the OAR, but without a 
specific date.  
 

Some policies are now in the Personnel 
Handbook, so they will be removed from the 
binder and archived (e.g., Bereavement Leave, 
Harassment and Retaliation, Exit Interview). 
Donated Leave will stay as is for now but go in the 
next revision of the Personnel Handbook. 
 

Regarding Legal Disclaimers, Wilson raised the 
District’s obligation to use the NRCS civil rights 
protocol on all documentation, such as noting EEO 
compliance. Sanchez noted that the disclaimers 
are on meeting agenda templates and email 
signatures. We may need to get clarification on 
what documents should have the language. 
 

District Organizational Structure was recently 
updated and is being approved through the Salary 
Administration Plan process. However, the 
resolution from 2009 refers to a specific structure 
from that time. Plowhead suggested replacing this 
and other resolutions tied to specific dates with 
more general policies, for example saying that we 
must have an organizational structure but not 
tying the policy to a specific one. 
 

Ended policy review with Promoting Internal Staff. 

Policies/Resolutions identified for 
Priority revision: 
• Grant Entity Payout Limitations 
• Inspection Policy 
• Limitation and Cap 
• Public Records Disclosure 
• Records Retention 
• District Organization Structure 

(approve current chart and 
draft new policy/archive 
resolution) 

• Salary Administration Plan 
• Exit Interview 
• Special Districts Group 

Insurance 
• Workers Comp for Volunteers 
• Exit Interview (now in 

Personnel Handbook) 
 
Moderate/Low Priority: 
• Intellectual Property Protection 

(wording and potential legal 
review) 

• Employee Rewards and 
Recognition 

• Interim District Manager  
 
Policies/Resolutions to be 
Archived: 
• Bereavement Leave (now in 

Personnel Handbook) 
• Harassment and Retaliation 

(now in Personnel Handbook) 
• Promoting Internal Staff 
 
 

http://www.marionswcd.net/


408 N. Third Ave | Stayton, OR 97383 | Phone 503-391-9927 | www.marionswcd.net 
 

 
4 | P ag e 

 
 

4 

Salary Administration Plan updates – Sanchez 
added text from the Personnel Handbook so the 
Plan would have all District compensation (health 
care, paid time off, etc.), not just salary. She also 
defined the Specialist position and corrected the 
pay range/step so when someone moves to a 
Specialist position their pay will increase to the 
next higher range. 
 

The Committee discussed potential revisions to 
the Annual Salary Table. Because the average 
increase between steps is 1.3%, the Committee 
recommends that an employee be moved up to 
the range that is at least 1.3% higher than their 
current pay step. Brenda will write a description 
and review it using the pay equity lens. The next 
step will be to revise the salary table. 

Sanchez will put on December 
Board meeting agenda. 

 Plowhead adjourned meeting at 9:58  

http://www.marionswcd.net/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Marion Soil and Water 
Conservation District  

 
Policy Binder  
Vol. 1: 2000 - 2023 

 



Table of  Contents 

Definitions 

Board 
 

Delegation of Authority (2021-12-21) 
• Board members may be given authority or power to act on behalf of the board. The 

District’s Board of Directors desires to update and revise the Delegation of Authority to 
address changes in the law and to clarify certain procedures. 

 
Meeting Policy and Procedure (2005-03-02) 

• Adopting ORS 192.620 as Policy. It is the intent of ORS 192.620 to 192.690 that the 
decisions of governing bodies are arrived at openly. 

 
Travel Policy (2020-01-08-A) 

• The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform standards for travel by all District 
Directors. 

 
External Communications 

 

Ag Water Quality Concern (2019-12-04) 
• Neither the Marion SWCD staff, nor the Board of Directors will attempt to "seek out" 

violations of the rules while working in or representing the District. 
 
City of Keizer Economic Development (2011-11-02) 

• The Marion Soil and Water Conservation District Board hereby concurs with the proposed 
Urban Renewal Plan Amendment which will Increase the maximum indebtedness beyond 
the limits of ORS 457.220(4) and cause the Agency to notify the County Assessor to divide 
the tax revenues collected on the value in the Area according to the Urban Renewal Plan 
Amendment and this Resolution each tax year until the debt incurred under the Plan, as 
amended, is repaid. 

 
Liaisons to Watershed Councils (2005-06-01) 

• Staff of the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) can provide assistance to 
the watershed councils within Marion SWCD District boundaries. For natural resources 
projects that watershed councils plan to complete, Marion SWCD can provide technical 
advice, resources, information, and conservation planning services, as staff time is available. 

 
USDA Conservation Plan Review (2004-01-20) 

• Oregon's Soil and Water Conservation Districts are invited to provide input and take board 
action on conservation plans provided by the Natural Resources Conservation Service 
(NRCS). The Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) shall use the following 
procedures and criteria to evaluate conservation plans for USDA Programs. 

 
Financial 

 

Check Writing (2002-09-04) 
• Unless otherwise required by the Board of Directors, either for a specific expense or a 

class/type of expense, the signature of a single authorized check-signer is sufficient to 
execute District checks less than $3,000 in payment of authorized District expenses, 
subject to adopted delegation of authority by the board. 

 
 
 
 



Credit Card (2007-07-11) 
• Sets credit card procedures 

 
Disposing of Surplus Property (2005-05-04) 

• To determine by what prescribing rules the SWCD will use to dispose of surplus property 
owned by or under the control of the SWCD according to ORS 279A.065(5) Public 
Contracting Rules and Prescribing Rules of Procedure for Public Contracting. 

 
Financial Management (2006-07-06) 

• Provide efficient use of capital through prudent banking and cash management. 
Control receipts and disbursements. Maintain good working relations with financial 
institutions. Ensure all financial systems, functions and controls meet generally accepted 
audit standards. Provide adequate protection for employees and board members. 

 
Permanent Tax Rate (2000-09-07) 

• Sets a permanent tax rate 
 
Public Contracting (2021-11-03) 

• ORS 279A.065 and 279A.070 authorize public contracting agencies to adopt local rules 
for public contracting and the District's Board of Directors, acting both as the governing 
body of the District and as the Local Contract Review Board ("LCRB"), adopts the 
Contracting Rules as shown in Attachment A to this Resolution. 

 
Registered Office Agent (2022-05-04) 

• The district desires to change its Registered Agent in accordance with Oregon 
Revised Statute 198.340. 

 
Reserve Fund : Building Abolish (2012-03-12) 

• District established a Building Reserve Fund, Resolution Number 060601, m June 2001, 
in accordance with Oregon's local budget law; and WHEREAS, the District has 
determined that it is no longer necessary to maintain the Building Reserve Fund. 

 
Reserve Fund : Building Establish (2020-06-10) 

• District desires to establish a Building Reserve Fund in accordance with ORS 294.346 
 
Reserve Fund: Multipurpose Establish (2012-03-07) 

• District desires to establish a Multipurpose Reserve Fund in accordance 
with ORS 294.346 

 
Reserve Fund: Vehicle Abolish (2021-04-07) 

• District desires to abolish their Vehicle Reserve Fund in accordance with ORS 294.346 
 

Grants 
 

Inspection Policy (2009-11-02) 
• Landowner Assistance Program requires [that following project completion] yearly status 

reviews be conducted for the first 2 years, and that telephone check-ins I follow-up calls be 
made in the following 3 years, and that Staff perform a randomly selected audit on 5% of 
the plans that remain. 

 
Limitation and Cap (2020-03-11) 

• Board of Directors has established a Grant Limitation Policy (2008-05-07) to cap the total 
combined payout from all Marion SWCD grant funds that an entity can receive during a 
fiscal year and during a rolling five (5) fiscal year time period 

 
 



Legal 
 

Intellectual Property Protection (2009-04-01) 
• The District has invested public funds to develop and produce information and programs, 

and holds that all information that has been authored or designed by an employee or 
employees of the District for the District is intellectual property of the District. The District 
may utilize legal means to protect the intellectual property of the District, including but not 
limited to copyrights and patents, to the extent allowed under state and federal law. 

 
Public Records Disclosure (2005-02-03) 

• To create a public records disclosure policy. 
 
Records Retention (2006-01-04) 

• The purpose of this resolution is to determine by what administrative rules the Marion Soil 
& Water Conservation District (SWCD) will use to retain and archive all records 
according to Oregon's Administrative Rules (OAR) Chapter 166 Division 150 covering 
County and Special District Retention Schedules published by the Oregon Secretary of 
State Archives Division in November 2004. 

 
Use of Legal Disclaimers (2009-04-01) 

• The district will utilize legal disclaimers in order to specify and delimit the scope of rights 
and obligations that may be exercised and enforced by the public in association with 
information, assistance, and programs provided by the district. 

 
Personnel 

 

Bereavement Leave (2002-09-04-C) 
• In addition to the use of sick leave, the District will authorize up to 24 hours of 

Bereavement Leave per fiscal year. Bereavement leave is meant to provide employees 
with time away from work to pay respect, mourn and tend to necessary arrangements or 
gatherings upon the death of family members, friends and acquaintances. 

 
Cost of Living Adjustment (2023-01-11) 

• This policy provides a clear, transparent, and consistent process with respect to the annual 
implementation of a cost-of-living adjustment. 

 
District Organization Structure (2005-05-04) 

• WHEREAS the number of staff working on behalf of the Marion SWCD has  
substantially increased, with diverse responsibilities in support of the District's programs 
and operations; and, the Board of Directors of the Marion SWCD also has established 
Board Committees to assist the District in carrying out its programs, administrative 
activities, and budget; and, the Board of Directors of the Marion SWCD desires to 
effectively describe lines of organizational and reporting authority; now, therefore the 
Marion SWCD Board of Directors hereby adopts the attached organization chart as its 
official description of organizational structure, in conjunction with its adopted delegations of 
authority. 

 
Donated Leave (2002-09-04-2) 

• In special circumstances involving individual medical or family hardship, the District 
Manager may authorize District employee(s) to donate accrued annual leave (vacation) to 
another District employee to use as sick leave. 

 

Employee Rewards (2005-09-07) 
• This policy provides basic guidelines for the administration of Marion SWCD's Employee 

Rewards and Recognition Program. The guidelines are applicable to all regular employees 
of Marion SWCD. The policy is designed to encourage employees to make a performance 
difference either individually or through teams. The policy recognizes achievements that 



contribute to the overall mission and goals of the Marion SWCD. 
 
Exit Interview (2005-12-07) 

• An exit interview will be requested of any employee that is leaving the District. The 
employee has a right to refuse to answer the questions, but should be reassured that if they 
choose to answer the questions, the answers they give may be utilized to improve the 
District's operations and policies. The employee is under no obligation to divulge personal 
information such as views on colleagues or any personal enmity they have with the District. 

 
Harassment and Retaliation (2020-01-08) 

• Marion Soil and Water Conservation District has developed this policy to ensure that all 
its employees can work in an environment free from unlawful harassment, discrimination 
and retaliation. Marion Soil and Water Conservation District will make every reasonable 
effort to ensure that all concerned are familiar with these policies and are aware that any 
complaint in violation of these policies will be investigated and resolved appropriately. 

 
Interim District Manager (2021-07-07) 

• In the event that a Board member is requested by the Board to fill in the vacant manager 
position temporarily as Interim Manager. 

 
Personnel Policy Guidebook (2023-08-02)  

• Policy on file at Marion SWCD Office 
 
Promoting Internal Staff (2005-03-02) 

• The purpose of this resolution is to promote existing SWCD employees and to appoint 
those employees who have been filling in temporarily as the "interim managers" of the 
Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) to fill the vacant District manager 
position; and to raise their salaries according to the increased management responsibilities 
as defined by the Board and in their new job 
descriptions. 
 

Safety Policy Guidebook  
• Policy on file at Marion SWCD Office 

 
Salary Administration Plan (2002-09-04-1) 

• SWCD desires to establish a salary schedule that fairly compensates its staff within 
the context of its financial resources, priorities, standing as a public 
entity receiving tax-based revenue, and in comparison, with other comparable employers 
 

Special Districts Group Ins. (2002-04-03) 
• This Resolution must be adopted by each Special District governing body as a 

prerequisite to becoming a participant of the Special Districts Workers Compensation 
Self Insured group. 

 
Workers Comp for Volunteers (2007-05-02) 

• Pursuant to ORS 656.031. workers’ compensation coverage will be provided to the 
classes of volunteer workers as indicated below (checked “Applicable”) and listed on the 
attached Volunteer Election Form(s). 

 
Website (2010-05-05) 

• The purpose of this policy is to define for the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District 
employees and directors, the intended objectives of the District's website. 

 
 

Appendix 
 
 
 



Definitions 
 
Resolution: 
 

• Memorializes decisions of the board 
• Adopts policies and procedures 
• Clarifies ambiguous terms in the governing documents  
• Adopted by the board 
• May not contradict anything in the governing documents 

 
A resolution is  a formal expression of intention, made by voting.   It defines the 
problem and assigns an action to fix the problem.  A resolution is a method of 
formalizing a decision.  It should contain the following: 
 

• Authority. The section of the governing documents that gives the board 
authority to adopt resolutions 

• Purpose. Why the resolution is needed or being adopted 
• Scope and Intent. Who will be affected, the reach, range and extent 
• Specifications. A clear and complete statement on what those bound by 

the rule are expected to do 
 

Policy: 
 

• Is a law, regulation, administrative action, incentive, or voluntary practice  
• Sets forth a process and procedure 
• Adopted by the board by resolution 
• May not contradict anything in the governing documents 

 
Policy: This is the process that will be done to fix the problem stated in the 
resolution.  Each policy should be adopted by resolution as it documents the 
board vote, as well as making any changes to policy well documented at a public 
meeting and easily trackable. 
 
Rules, Regulations or Guidelines: 
 

• Defines expected behaviors  
• Identifies limitations of actions  
• Adopted by the board 
• May not contradict anything in the governing documents 

 
See next page below for Resolution Template:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 Marion Soil and Water Conservation District 

Resolution Adopting Policy 
Resolution #: 

Subject:  Adopting / Amending / Superseding 
Policy Name: 

Category:  
Effective Date: 
Date Amended or Superseded: 
Amended or Superseded by Resolution #: 
Attachments: A (Policy) 
WHEREAS,  
 
State the current problem (this needs to be accomplished in one brief sentence); and 
 
WHEREAS,  
 
Describe the scope of the problem cited in the first whereas clause (this clause needs 
to flow logically from the first) and the inherent need for a solution; and 
 
WHEREAS, Explain the impact and harms perpetuated by the current problem 
(once again, the clause needs to flow in a logical sequence); and 
 
WHEREAS,  
 
Use additional “whereas” clauses to elaborate rationale for the problem that needs to 
be solved; now,  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT  RESOLVED,  
 
That the Marion SWCD Board of Directors makes the following recommendation for 
solution (Adopt Policy); and, be it 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED,  
 
That (this is an optional additional recommendation; if not used, end the previous 
“resolved” clause with a period). 
 
This Resolution to approve the ___________________ policy was adopted by a vote of 
XX to XX of the Marion SWCD Board of Directors on Month, Day, Year. 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Board Chair Signature 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


Board of Directors 
 

Delegation Of Authority 
Resolution # 2021-12-01 

WHEREAS, Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (“District”) is an Oregon 
special district which is subject to Oregon’s Chapter 568; Soil and Water 
Conservation; and 
 
WHEREAS, ORS Chapter 568 authorizes the board to grant individual board 
members may be given authority or power to act on behalf of the board. Power is 
granted through board action and must be recorded in the minutes; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 1, 2021, the District’s Board of Directors (“Board”) 
reviewed the previously adopted Delegation of Authority dated October 2, 2002; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors desires to update and revise the 
Delegation of Authority to address changes in the law and to clarify certain 
procedures; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the District’s Board of Directors, 
acting both as the governing body of the District, adopts the Delegation of Authority 
as shown in Attachment A to this Resolution. 
 
The Delegation of Authority shown in Exhibit A (See Appendix 1) shall supersede 
and replace all prior local contracting rules adopted by the District. 
 
Approved and adopted on December 1, 2021 
 
No Vote Recorded on scanned image 
 
Signed by Terry Hsu, Chair 
 

 
Board Meeting Policy and Procedures 
Resolution #2005-03-02-A 

ORS 192.620 Policy: The Oregon form of government requires that an informed 
public be made aware of the deliberations and decisions of governing bodies and 
the information upon which such decisions were made. It is the intent of ORS 
192.620 to 192.690 that the decisions of governing bodies are arrived at openly. 
 
Meeting Procedures 
  
Generally, agenda items will be taken in the order as written. However, in certain 
circumstances, the District Chair, Presiding Officer or Board Member may elect to 
take an item out of order. To accommodate the scheduling needs of interested 
parties and the public, the District Chair or Presiding Officer may also designate a 
specific time at which an item will be heard. Any such times are indicated on the 
agenda. 
 
Please be aware that topics not listed on the agenda may be introduced during the 
Directors, Staff or Agency Reports, the Public Comment period, under Other Items 
or at other times during the meeting. 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
https://www.marionswcd.net/
BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
Do not like this



Control of Meetings 
 
The District Board has the authority to control the meetings, regulate the length of 
public testimony or comments, or ask any person who is disruptive or fails to comply 
with the rules of the meetings to leave. 
 
Cameras, tape recorders, and microphones must be allowed in public meetings but 
the chair or presiding officer may regulate their use to the extent of keeping them 
from disrupting the meeting. Members of the public will be allowed to tape record 
public meetings. 
 
Public Comment 
 
The District's Board of Directors encourages public comment on any agenda item. 
 
The District board will hear comments relating to a specific agenda item as each 
agenda item is considered. Comments on other topics may be made during the 
public comment period. 
 
Every attempt will be made to share with the District's Board of Directors written 
comments that are delivered to the District Office in advance of the meeting date. 
Early delivery of written comments is encouraged. To submit written comments 
directly to the District Directors, please bring at least ten (10) copies to the meeting. 
 
Executive Session 
 
The District Board may also convene in a confidential executive session where, by 
law under ORS 192.660, only members of the District board, press and when 
necessary, District Staff may attend. Others will be asked to leave the room during 
these discussions. Before convening such a session, the District Chair or Presiding 
Officer will make a public announcement and explain necessary procedures. 
Questions? If you have any questions regarding the District's board meeting 
procedures, please call the District office at 503-391-9927. 
 
If special physical, language or other accommodation is needed for a meeting, 
please advise the District's Administrative Coordinator at the phone number 
mentioned above as soon as possible but at least 72 hours in advance of any 
meeting. 
 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on March 2, 2005. 
 
Signed by Douglas Kramer, Chair 
 

 
Director’s Travel 
Resolution #2020-01-08-A w/ Exhibits A & B 

Text of Policy (see Appendix 2) 
 
Exhibits (see Appendix 2) 

• A (Non-reimbursable travel expenses) 
• B (Procedures) 

 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


External Communications 
 

Agricultural Water Quality  
Resolution #2019-12-04 
Amends #2005-11-02 

The mission of the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District is to protect, 
conserve and improve the quality of soil and water through planning, technical 
assistance and education. 
 
Marion SWCD is a Local Management Agency for the Molalla-Pudding-French 
Prairie North Santiam Sub basin Agricultural Water Quality Management Area Plan 
(Plan). The Plan identifies strategies to reduce water pollution from agricultural and 
rural lands through a combination of educational programs, best management 
practices, and monitoring. 
 
Marion SWCD works with partner agencies and groups to implement strategies in 
the Plan, as resources allow. Some of Marion SWCD's activities may include 
helping land managers implement voluntary water quality improvement projects, 
hosting workshops or tours of successful water quality improvements, working with 
land managers to secure cost-share funding for projects and distributing educational 
materials about agriculture and water quality. Marion SWCD does not take a 
regulatory role in the enforcement of the local Agricultural Water Quality 
Management Area Rules. 
 
Procedures 
 
Marion SWCD offers voluntary technical assistance and other services to land 
managers with water quality concerns. Staff members regularly discuss the Plan 
and rules with land manager in order to increase awareness and education about 
water quality and compliance. If a land manager the staff is working with has a water 
quality related concern, that staff member will work with the land manager to adopt 
an appropriate conservation practice in order to resolve the situation. If the land 
manager is unwilling to work toward a problem resolution, the district will not work 
on other issues until the water quality issue is resolved. 
 
Neither the Marion SWCD staff, or the Board of Directors will attempt to "seek out" 
violations of the rules while working in or representing the District.  
 
If a water quality problem is clearly occurring on a property the staff are currently 
working with, that staff member will attempt to educate the land manager and 
offer assistance to fix the situation, or plan for a future project. If the land 
manager is unwilling to work toward a problem resolution, the district staff may 
request direction from the board on a case-by-case basis. If there is a clear water 
quality problem on a property that is not a Marion SWCD client, the staff has the 
option to contact the land manager and offer Marion SWCD services. 
 
If a land manager is found by a regulatory agency to be out of compliance with the 
ODA rules or other regulations, they are not eligible for Marion SWCD funds until 
they are deemed compliant by the regulatory agency. Technical service may be 
provided to land managers who request assistance from Marion SWCD. 
 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous Vote of the Board of Directors at its 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
receives a letter of non-compliance from ODA or other regulatory entity.



regularly scheduled meeting on December 4, 2019. 
 
Signed by Terry Hsu, Chair 
 

 
Keizer Urban Renewal 
Resolution #2011-02-11 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Keizer, Oregon is considering a substantial amendment to 
the Keizer North River Road Economic Development Area Urban Renewal Plan 
(Plan) to increase its maximum indebtedness from $45,890,384 to 
$5I,653,891(Urban Renewal Plan Amendment); and 
 
WHEREAS, this increase is anticipated to be greater than 20 percent of the initial 
maximum indebtedness of the Plan as adjusted pursuant to ORS 457.220(4) and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed increase in maximum indebtedness stated in the Urban 
Renewal Plan Amendment requires the written concurrence of those taxing districts 
imposing at least 7 5 percent of the amount of taxes imposed under permanent rate 
limits in the North River Road Economic Development Urban Renewal Area (Area); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the repayment of the debt incurred by the Keizer Urban Renewal 
Agency (Agency) for the Plan, as amended, requires that the Agency apply 34% of 
the tax increment revenues it receives for repayment of Agency debt ( and 
associated costs) and stipulates that the remaining 66% be allocated to the taxing 
jurisdictions, which allocation requires the written concurrence of those taxing 
districts imposing at least 75 percent of the amount of taxes imposed under 
permanent rate limits in the Area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Keizer is pledging to pay the portion of the revenues 
foregone by the taxing jurisdictions up to the amount received from any future 
foreclosure or collection of the defaulting Local Improvement District participant after 
reimbursement of the City's fees and administrative expenses for this debt 
collection, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District imposes permanent 
rate property taxes in the Area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency representatives have consulted and conferred with the 
affected taxing jurisdictions and has proposed a time frame for extension of the Area 
of four years; and 
 
WHEREAS, concurrence under ORS 457.4 70(7) of the Marion Soil and Water 
Conservation District is required for the Agency to approve the Urban Renewal Plan 
Amendment To protect, conserve and improve the quality of soil and water in 
Marion County through planning, technical assistance and education. 
 
NOW THEREFORE The Marion Soil and Water Conservation District RESOLVES: 
 
The Marion Soil and Water Conservation District Board hereby concurs with the 
proposed Urban Renewal Plan Amendment which will: 
 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


• Increase the maximum indebtedness beyond the limits of ORS 457.220(4) 
and 

• Cause the Agency to notify the County Assessor to divide the tax revenues 
collected on the value in the Area according to the Urban Renewal Plan 
Amendment and this Resolution each tax year until the debt incurred under  
the Plan, as amended, is repaid. 

 
This resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on November 2, 2011. 
 
Signed by Darin Olson, Chair 
 
 

Role of Marion SWCD Staff as Liaisons to Watershed Councils 
Resolution #2005-06-01  
Amends #2005-02-03 

Staff of the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) can provide 
assistance to the watershed councils within Marion SWCD District boundaries. For 
natural resources projects that watershed councils plan to complete, Marion SWCD 
can provide technical advice, resources, information, and conservation planning 
services, as staff time is available. 
 
Some general categories in which watershed councils may request assistance from 
Marion SWCD to be helpful include the following: 
 

• Invasive Weed Removal 
• Native Plantings 
• Erosion Control 
• Riparian Restoration 
• Water Quality 
• Water Quantity 

 
Additionally, the SWCD staff will, when requested, provide technical advice about 
issues that arise at meetings and can provide the District's point of view. Staff can 
also assist with some grant-related activities, including grant review.  
For involvement on projects that may take a considerable percentage of overall 
work time, the staff will obtain approval from the District Manager or the District 
Board as appropriate for involvement. 
 
To ensure sound risk management practices, the District prefers not to be involved 
in contract development. District staff can assist watershed councils by directing 
them to appropriate sources of assistance with contracting, if necessary. 
 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on February 3, 2005.  
 
Signed by Douglas Krahmer, Chair 
 
Adopted: February 3, 2005 
Amended: June 1, 2005  
 
 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


USDA Conservation Plan Review  
Resolution #2009-09-03 w/ Exhibit A - Procedures 

 
Purpose 
 
Oregon's Soil and Water Conservation Districts are invited to provide input and take 
board action on conservation plans provided by the Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS). 
 
The Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) shall use the following 
procedures and criteria to evaluate conservation plans for USDA Programs 
including but not limited to: 
 

• Conservation Reserve Program (CRP) General and Continuous 
• Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP) 
• Environmental Quality Incentive Program (EQIP) 
• Grassland Reserve Program (GRP) 
• Wetland Reserve Program (WRP) 
• Wildlife Habitat Incentives Program (WHIP) 

 
The Directors shall follow the procedures and criteria as listed below. 
 
1.  Conservation plans shall be reviewed and acted upon according to procedures in 
     2(a) and 2(b) below at a sanctioned SWCD board meeting. When necessary, the 
     board may also choose to use procedure 2(c). 
 
2.  The conservation plan will be reviewed in one of three ways: 
 

a) Open Session. This method is strongly preferred by the Directors based on 
public review for public funds expended. In order to review a plan in open 
session, an individual must provide written permission stating that he or she 
has given the Directors authorization to review and discuss certain details of 
their plan. An individual is encouraged to attend the open session but is not 
required to do so. 

 
b) Closed Executive Session. An Executive Session may be held to discuss 

aspects of the plan that an individual did not give his or her permission to 
discuss in open session. The Directors may find it necessary to review and 
discuss this information in order to help them make a decision regarding the 
plan in open session. The Directors shall determine who will be permitted to 
attend the executive session. All others will be asked to leave temporarily 
until the board resumes the open session. Once the board reconvenes the 
open session, the Directors must have written permission from the individual 
to state at the least the name used on the conservation plan in order for the 
board to take any official action. Official action by the board may include 
either approving, not approving, recommending or not recommending to write 
a letter of support based on what USDA program the plan falls under. 

 
c) No Written Permission. If an individual does not give the board written 

permission to disclose any information about his or her plan in open session, 
then the board may delegate the authority to a director or directors to review 
and sign the plan on behalf of the board. 

 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
These do not exsist anymore

BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
We need USDA to review and update



3. A Conservation Plan shall be evaluated on the following criteria: 
 

a) The plan meets the individual's conservation, environmental and economic 
objectives. 
 

b) The plan meets one or more of the District's resource concerns as stated its 
Business Plan. 
 

c) The practices are necessary and will treat the identified problem(s). 
 

d) The practices are feasible. 
 

e) All necessary permits, land rights, water rights, and other assurances are 
expected to be obtained with minimal difficulty or already have been 
obtained. 
 

f) The project does not have any direct off-site negative impacts to neighboring 
properties. 
 

g) Other special districts, i.e. a water control district, in the project area has 
been contacted and proof of contact has been submitted to the Marion Soil 
and Water Conservation District prior to the board reviewing the plan. 

 
4.  The District Chair shall be authorized to sign conservation plan revisions, if the  
     District Manager and the Chair in consultation with NRCS determines that the  
     revisions are minor and limited in scope. 
 
5.  This policy can be amended at any time at a regularly sanctioned District  
     meeting. 
 
This policy was adopted unanimously by the Board of Directors at its regularly 
scheduled meeting on September 3, 2003. 
 
Signed by Ralph Fisher, Chair 
 
 See Appendix 3 for Exhibit A - USDA Conservation Plan Review Procedures 

 
Financial 

 
Check Writing  
Resolution #2002-09-04 

 
Unless otherwise required by the Board of Directors, either for a specific expense or 
a class/type of expense, the signature of a single authorized check-signer is 
sufficient to execute District checks less than $3,000 in payment of authorized 
District expenses, subject to adopted delegation of authority by the board. 
 
This policy was adopted by a five to two vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on September 4, 2002. 
 
Daniel L. Goffin, Chair 
 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
if we continue to review, maybe the NR Committee should review and then it goes to the Board as reccomended by Committee??



Credit Card 
Resolution #2007-11-01 
Amends #2007-07-11 

1. The District Manager will be issued a single credit card, not a debit card. The 
credit card shall have a maximum limit of $10,000. 

 
2. The credit card shall be issued in the name of the District and the District 

Manager. 
 

3. No cash withdrawals shall be permitted on a District credit card. 
 

4. The District Manager shall give to a Board authorized individual(s) all receipts 
of charges and documentation for the purpose of each charge. The 
authorized individual(s) shall then match the receipt(s) against the credit card 
statement when it arrives, prior to authorizing payment on the credit card 
account.  

 
5. The District Manager may use the District credit card to pay expenditures 

identified within the budget categories and within budgeted amounts. 
 

6. The District Manager may use a District credit card to pay budgeted office 
expenses within the budgeted category, in lieu of petty cash funds. 

 
7. All other District employees needing to purchase work related items, that 

require the use of a credit card, must notify the District Manager in writing by 
using the Credit Card Purchase Request Form. The District Manager shall 
then review the request in a timely manner, authorize or deny the 
purchase(s), and notify the employee that their request was either approved 
or denied. If authorized, the District Manager will order the item(s). 

 
8. Unless the Board provides express authorization for use of the District credit 

card, the District credit card shall not be used for expenses incurred while 
serving on a board, council or committee independent of the District. 

 
9. A lost or stolen credit card shall be reported immediately to the issuing Credit 

Card Company and Chair of the District's Board of Directors or any other 
Board appointed individual. 

 
10. Legal action may be taken against the District Manager for any unauthorized 

charges on a District credit card, and the Board may take disciplinary action 
as necessary. 

 
11. When not in use the District's credit card shall be kept in the locked fireproof 

file cabinet located in the District Manager's office. 
 

12. Upon receipt of the credit card statement and after verification of all expenses 
by a Board authorized individual (s), the charges shall be paid in full prior to 
the statement due date. The District Manager shall not sign the expense 
check. 

 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


13. The credit card shall not be used for securing lodging reservations or for any 
other open ended purchase where the final amount is unknown at the time of 
the transaction. 

 
These revised procedures were adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of 
Directors at its regularly scheduled meeting on November 1, 2007. 
 
First Adopted: July 11, 2007  
Revision Adopted: November 1, 2007 
 
Signed Douglas Krahmer, Chair 
 
 

Surplus Property Disposal 
Resolution #2005-05-04-A 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this resolution is to determine by what prescribing rules the Marion 
Soil & Water Conservation District (SWCD) will use to dispose of surplus property 
owned by or under the control of the SWCD according to ORS 279A.065(5) Public 
Contracting Rules and Prescribing Rules of Procedure for Public Contracting.  
 
Resolution 
 
WHEREAS the Marion SWCD is an Oregon Special District that is subject to 
Oregon's Public Contracting Rules; and, 
 
WHEREAS surplus property owned by or under the control of the Marion SWCD 
shall be disposed of pursuant to ORS 279A.185(2); and, 
 
WHEREAS surplus property owned by or under the control of the Marion SWCD 
that was purchased for under $1,000 and is still usable or in working condition shall 
be donated to a local nonprofit or charitable entity such as Goodwill or the Salvation 
Army or any other non-profit or charitable organization that the SWCD deems 
appropriate; or if the surplus property is no longer usable it shall then be properly 
disposed of by either recycling or placed in the garbage; and, 
 
WHEREAS surplus property owned by or under the control of the Marion SWCD 
that was purchased for over $1,000 shall be disposed of either through (1) State 
Surplus through an agreement with the Department of Administrative Services, (2) 
the printing of a legal (public) notice and advertising to sell to the public, obtain 
sealed bids or hold an auction, or (3) Donate to a local non-profit or charitable entity 
such as Goodwill or the Salvation Army or any other non-profit or charitable 
organization that the SWCD deems appropriate; now, therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Marion SWCD Board of Directors hereby adopts to 
dispose of surplus property owned or under the control of the SWCD by the 
prescribed rules stated above effective as of the date of adoption by the Board. 
 
This resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on May 4, 2005. 
 

https://oregon.public.law/statutes/ors_279a.065
https://oregon.public.law/statutes/ors_279a.185
https://www.marionswcd.net/
BSANCHEZ
Cross-Out

BSANCHEZ
Cross-Out

BSANCHEZ
Cross-Out

BSANCHEZ
Cross-Out



Signed by: Douglas Krahmer, Chair 
 
 

Financial Management 
Resolution #2006-07-06 

Objectives 
 

1. Provide efficient use of capital through prudent banking and cash 
management. 

2. Control receipts and disbursements. 
3. Maintain good working relations with financial institutions. 
4. Ensure all financial systems, functions and controls meet generally accepted 

audit standards. 
5. Provide adequate protection for employees and board members. 

Requirements 
 
The accounting system will include the use of QuickBooks, follow applicable District 
policy and procedures and be maintained in compliance applicable with Federal and 
State law. The accounting system will encourage good financial management and 
produce the following: 
 

1. Data necessary for the preparation of financial statements. 
2. Efficient functioning of financial affairs of the District.  
3. Encouragement of sound financial management policies and procedures. 
4. Documentation will be maintained in neat, orderly files. 

In implementing a sound financial management system, the District must complete 
the following: 
 

1. Assure the annual work plan be developed in accordance with the annual 
budget priorities. 

2. Manage funds with fiduciary responsibility. 
3. Ensure that all funds in bank accounts are covered under FDIC. The District 

will secure a Certificate of Collateralization for any account in excess of the 
FDIC limit. 

4. Maintain accurate and complete financial records and reports, including but 
not limited to:  

 
a. Annual District budget and work plan 
b. Revenues and expenditures 
c. Property and assets 
d. Cash deposits, investments, and other financial holdings 
e. Monthly financial reports approved by the Board 
f. Reports to appropriate local, state and federal agencies 
g. Annual audited statements 
h. Any special report requested by the Board, state, and federal agencies 

or 
i. financial institution. 

5.  Oversight of risk management insurance. 
6.  Review and acceptance of annual audit report, prepared by a licensed CPA. 
7.  Whenever possible refrain from borrowing money or mortgaging District 
 property. 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
Should we state that ...Strategic Plan and annual workplans.



8.  Adhere to the Government Standards and Practices laws regarding gifts and 
 potential conflicts of interest. 
9.  Adhere to state records retention laws. 
10.  Annually review financial policies and procedures that provide clear 
 delegations of responsibilities. Refer to Resolution No. 090402B (#2002-09-
 04-B) "In the  Matter of Delegating Authority of the Board of Directors" 
11.  Follow fund accounting practices for budgeting, bookkeeping and financial 
   reporting. 
12.  Annually a member of the Board or their appointed or contracted designee 
   shall perform an unannounced internal financial management review. 
13.  Have an independent bookkeeper regularly audit and assist with review of 
   District financial record. 
14.  All employees handling funds will have passed an extensive background    
  check. 

 
The revision of this policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of 
Directors at its regularly scheduled meeting on July 5, 2006. 
 
Signed by Douglas A. Krahmer, Chair 
 

 
Permanent Rate Limit  
Resolution # 2000-09-07 

A resolution proposing a permanent rate limit in the amount of $.05 per $1,000 of 
assessed value, beginning fiscal year 2001-2002 to be placed on the November 7, 
2000, ballot to provide permanent stable funding for the operation of Marion Soil and 
Water Conservation District. 
 
WHEREAS, the Marion Soil & Water Conservation District has determined the 
public demand for technical assistance has reached the point where additional 
personnel is required;  
 
WHEREAS, the Marion Soil & Water Conservation District has identified a need for 
a stable funding source; 
 
WHEREAS, State of Oregon Ballot Measures 47 and 50 provide the frame work for 
voter approved local taxes;  
 
WHEREAS, the Marion Soil & Water Conservation District has determined that $.05 
per $1,000 of assessed value is within State of Oregon Ballot Measures 47 and 50, 
which is available to the District; and, 
 
WHEREAS; it is the Marion Soil & Water Conservation District intent to submit a 
ballot measure at the next November General Election for a permanent rate limit to 
the registered voters of the Marion Soil & Water Conservation District for approval; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Marion Soil & Water Conservation District does ordain as 
follows: 
 
For the purpose fiscal stability to the Marion Soil & Water Conservation District's 
General Fund, ensuring funding for technical assistance to address water quality 
issues in the Clean Water Act, Senate Bill 1O10 Water Management Plan and 
Endangered Species Act at service demand levels of residents, a permanent rate 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
Is this happening?



limit proposal of $.05 per $1000 assessed value, beginning fiscal year 2001-2002. 
 
This measure shall be submitted to the electors of the Marion Soil & Water 
Conservation District, for their approval or rejection, at the State General Election 
held November 7, 2000. 
 
Signed Jeanne Fromm , Chair 
September 7, 2000 
 
See Appendix 4 for Exhibit A – Ballot Measure  
 

 
Public Contracting Rules And Procedures 
Resolution #2021-11-03 
Amends #030205C & #2014-02-20 

 
WHEREAS, Marion Soil and Water Conservation District ("District") is an Oregon 
special district which is subject to Oregon's public contracting laws [ORS chapters 
279A, 279B, and 279C]; and 
 
WHEREAS, ORS 279A.065 and 279A.070 authorize public contracting agencies to 
adopt local rules for public contracting; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 2, 2005, the District’s Board of Directors ("Board") adopted 
Resolution No. 030205C, Adopting Public Contracting Rules and Prescribing 
Procedural Rules for Public Contracting ("Contracting Rules"); and amended such 
Contracting Rules on February 20, 2014;and 
 
WHEREAS, the District's Board of Directors desires to update and revise the 
Contracting Rules to address changes in the law and to clarify certain procedures; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the District's Board of Directors, 
acting both as the governing body of the District and as the Local Contract Review 
Board ("LCRB"), adopts the Contracting Rules as shown in Attachment A to this 
Resolution. 
 
The Contracting Rules shown in Attachment A shall supersede and replace all prior 
local contracting rules adopted by the District. 
 
Approved and adopted on  November 3, 2021 
Signed by Terry Hsu, Chair 
 
See Appendix 5 for Exhibit A – Contracting Rules 
 
 

Registered Agent 
Resolution # 2022-05-04  
Amends # 080614  

WHEREAS, Marion Soil and Water Conservation District ("District") is an Oregon 
special district which is subject to Oregon Revised Statutes regarding Special 
Districts generally, under ORS 198 et seq.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District desires to change its Registered Agent in accordance with 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
https://www.marionswcd.net/


Oregon Revised Statute 198.340; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the registered agent of the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District 
is hereby changed to Brenda Sanchez. 

 
2. That the address of the principal office and of the registered agent of the 

Marion Soil and Water Conservation District are the same. 
 
Approved and adopted: August 6, 2014 
Revised and adopted: May 4, 2022 
Signed Darin Olson, Chair 
 

 
Reserve Fund - Abolish Building  
Resolution #2012-03-07-A 

 
WHEREAS, Marion Soil and Water Conservation District ("District") is an Oregon 
special district which is subject to Oregon's Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305 et 
seq.); and 
WHEREAS, the District established a Building Reserve Fund, Resolution Number 
#060601 (June 06, 2001), in accordance with Oregon's local budget law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has determined that it is no longer necessary to maintain 
the Building Reserve Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District desires to abolish Building Reserve Fund and transfer those 
funds to the General Fund, in accordance with ORS 294.346 and ORS 294.353. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the balance of the Building Reserve Fund shall be transferred to the 
General Fund on July 1, 2012, or the first regular business day thereafter. 

 
2. That as a result of these actions, the Building Reserve Fund shall be 

abolished. 
 
Approved and adopted on March 7 , 2012. 
 
No Vote Recorded  
 
Signed by Darin Olson Chair 
 
 

Reserve Fund - Adopt Building  
Resolution #2020-06-10-A 
 

For the purpose of purchasing land, constructing a building or purchasing and/or 
remodeling an existing building to house District operations and employees. 
 
WHEREAS, Marion Soil and Water Conservation District ("District") is an Oregon 
special district which is subject to Oregon's Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305 et 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
https://www.marionswcd.net/


seq.); and 
 
WHEREAS, the District desires to establish a Building Reserve Fund in accordance 
with ORS 294.346; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. That money shall be transferred from the General Fund in order to establish a 
beginning balance for this fund of $750,000 in fiscal year 2020-2021. 

2. That the Fund will be reviewed on a yearly basis and each year the District 
Board of Directors and Budget Committee shall discuss and/or to determine 
how much funding to appropriate for the next fiscal year. 

3. That revenue for this Fund is primarily from interest earned on the money and 
may be expended if approved and appropriated; revenue may also be 
derived from the General Fund in excess of its expenditures in the previous 
year. 

4. That instruction will be provided to the budget officer each year to potentially 
allocate any additional funds if needed for a specific dollar amount. 

5. Pursuant to ORS 280.050 for fiscal year 2020-2021, no greater than 
$750,000 of the Building Fund may be used for purchasing land, constructing 
a building, purchase and/or remodel an existing building to house District 
operations and employees. 

6. That in no event shall greater than l00% of the monies in the Fund be 
appropriated in any fiscal year. 

7. That in the event that it is necessary to alter the appropriation of monies in 
the fund, outside of the regular budget process, the District will adhere to 
Oregon's Local Budget Law, which specifies the conditions under which a 
local government may appropriate necessary monies. 

8. That all expenditures from the Fund must be approved in advance by the 
District Board of Directors. 

9. If the Fund fulfills its purpose and is deemed no longer necessary, then any 
remaining funds shall be transferred to the General Fund; and the Fund may 
then be dissolved. 

 
Approved and adopted on June 10, 2020. 
 
No Vote Recorded  
 
Signed Terry Hsu, Board Chair 
 
 

Reserve Fund - Adopt Multipurpose  
Resolution #2017-05-03 
Amends #2014-02-20 

 
For the purpose of Unanticipated Projects and Catastrophic Loss 
 
WHEREAS, Marion Soil and Water Conservation District ("District") is an Oregon 
special district which is subject to Oregon's Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305 et 
seq.); and 
 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


WHEREAS, the District desires to establish a Multipurpose Reserve Fund in 
accordance with ORS 294.346 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. That money shall be transferred from the General Fund in order to establish a 
beginning balance for this fund. 

 
2. That the Fund will be reviewed on a yearly basis, each year the board and 

budget committee shall determine how much to appropriate for the next fiscal 
year. 

 
3. That revenue for this fund is primarily from interest earned on the fu nds; 

revenue may also be derived from the General Fund in excess of 
expenditures in the previous year. Should the fund exceed the budget limit, 
excess funds shall be transferred to the General Fund. 

 
4. That instruction will be provided to the budget officer to allocate the fund each 

year to a specific dollar amount, based upon the guidelines herein, for each 
of the three activities: Unanticipated Projects, and Catastrophic Loss. 

 
5. That allocations are: 
 
• No greater than 50% of the Fund may be used for Unanticipated Projects. 

These are projects which had not been anticipated in the current year's 
operating budget. Expenditures for uses for Unanticipated Projects shall 
be repaid to the Fund as soon as practical, and in all cases within the 
following three budget years. 

 
• No less than 50% and no greater than 100% of the Fund shall be set 

aside for a Catastrophic Loss Reserve incurred by the District, and the 
Fund may be used if necessary for the District to recover from a 
catastrophic loss or emergency. 

 
A. Catastrophic loss includes, but is not limited to natural disasters, 

accidental losses (i.e. fire, water damage, theft, etc.), and other 
events that would require very large but non-budgeted 
expenditures simply to continue operating the District.  

 
B. Emergency (as defined by ORS 279A.010) means circumstances 

that: 
 

1) Could not have been reasonably foreseen; 
 

2) Create a substantial risk of loss, damage or interruption of 
services or a substantial threat to property, public health, 
welfare or safety; 

 
3) Require prompt execution of a contract to remedy the 

condition. 
 



6. That in no event shall greater than l00% of the monies in the Fund be 
allocated in any fiscal year. 

 
7. That all expenditures from the Fund must be approved in advance by the 

District Board of Directors. 
 

8. That in the event that it is necessary to alter the appropriation of monies in 
the fund, outside of the regular budget process, the District will adhere to 
Oregon's Local Budget Law, which specifies the conditions under which a 
local government may appropriate necessary monies. 

 
Approved and adopted on May 3, 2017 
 
No Vote Recorded  
 
Signed Tim Bielenberg, Chair 
 
 

Reserve Fund - Abolish Vehicle 
Resolution #2021-07-21-A 
 

WHEREAS, Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (“District”) is an Oregon 
special district which is subject to Oregon’s Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305 et 
seq.); and 
 
WHEREAS, the District desires to abolish their Vehicle Reserve Fund in accordance 
with ORS 294.346. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the District transfer the balance of the funds from the Vehicle Reserve 
Fund to the General Fund in the amount of $52,877 in fiscal year 2020-2021. 

2. That the Fund fulfilled its purpose and is deemed no longer necessary, 
3. Therefore, the Vehicle Reserve Fund is hereby abolished. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED on April 7, 2021. 
 
No Signature on scanned image 
 
No Vote Recorded 

 
Grants 

 
LAP Inspection 
Resolution # 2009-11-02 

Background 
 
Regular check-ups of Landowner Assistance Program projects are important for 
maintaining quality control. 
 
Previously the District required annual follow-ups/ status checks on every LAP 
project implemented, and do so over a 5 year period. As the program has grown, so 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
https://www.marionswcd.net/


have the number of projects requiring follow-up/ annual status checks, resulting time 
/ management problems. The solution to easing the burdensome work load would 
be to modify the policy and reduce the number of required follow-ups (site visits) 
and/or phone calls needed each year. 
 
Policy 
 
Landowner Assistance Program, requires [that following project completion] yearly 
status reviews be conducted for the first 2 years, and that telephone check-ins I 
follow-up calls be made in the following 3 years, and that Staff perform a randomly 
selected audit on 5% of the plans that remain. 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on November 2, 2009. 
 
Signed Douglas Krahmer, Chair 
 
 

Grant Entity Payout Limitations 
Resolution #2020-03-11  
Adopted: May 7, 2008 

  Amended: February 1, 2012 
  Amended: February 20, 2014 
  Amended: March 11, 2020 
Background 
 
Marion Soil & Water Conservation District (Marion SWCD) currently manages four 
grant programs. Those programs are as follows: 

• Conservation Learning Education And Resource (CLEAR) 
• Landowner Assistance Program (LAP) 
• Cover Crop Program 
• Special Project Grant (SPG) 

The Board of Directors has final approval authority for all grant program 
applications.  
 
Purpose 
 
While each grant has a different intention and purpose, the Marion SWCD seeks to 
afford the availability of grant funds to a broader range of entities. Therefore, the 
Board of Directors has established a Grant Limitation Policy to cap the total 
combined payout from all Marion SWCD grant funds that an entity can receive 
during  a fiscal year and during a rolling five (5) fiscal year time period. Payout 
limitations are reviewed on an as needed basis to ensure the needs of the grant 
programs are being met. 
 
Definition 
 
For purposes of this policy, an entity may be defined as: 

• Corporation, Limited Liability Company (LLC), or Partnership 
• Farm Corporations 
• Horticultural Nurseries 
• Other Corporate or LLC organization 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


• Individual Landowner or Land Manager 
• Educational Institution (Not a School Grade or a School Classroom) 
• Government Agency 
• Native American Tribe 
• Nonprofit Organization or group – 501 (c) (3) status is not required 
• Neighborhood Association 
• Community Organization 

Policy 
 
A maximum of $7,500.00 in grant funds from all Marion SWCD grant programs will 
be permitted per entity during each fiscal year. 
 
Example: If an individual landowner has received LAP funds in the amount of 
$4,100.00, that individual would qualify for $3,400.00 more in grant funds through a 
CLEAR grant or SPG Grant for a total of $7,500. 
 
Exception: The District may allow an entity with a Large Project to request grant 
funds of $22,500.00, the maximum amount available to the applicant. Large Projects 
are defined as projects with a total cost in excess of $45,000.00, effective July 1, 
2020. 
 
Policy 
 
A maximum of $22,500 in grant funds from all Marion SWCD grant programs will be 
permitted per entity during any five consecutive fiscal year period. 
 
Accountability 
 
In order to maintain record of the amount of grant funds that have been received by 
an entity and ensure that $7,500.00 or $22,500.00 limit is not exceeded, grant 
tracking shall be maintained by the Marion SWCD. 
 
The amended policy was adopted by a 5-1 of the Board of Directors at its regularly 
scheduled meeting on March 11, 2020. 
 
Signed Terry Hsu, Chair 
 
Adopted: May 7, 2008 
Amended: July 6, 2011 
Amended: February 1, 2012 
Amended: February 20, 2014 
Amended: March 11, 2020 

 
Legal 

 
Intellectual Property Protection 
Resolution #2009-04-01-A 

Purpose 
 
The Marion Soil and Water Conservation District adheres to the fundamental 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


philosophy, to the extent of state and federal law, that all persons are entitled to full 
and complete information regarding the affairs of government and the official acts 
and policies of those who represent them as public officials and public employees. 
On the other hand, the access to this information is not intended to be used to 
violate individual privacy, nor the purpose of furthering a commercial enterprise, or 
to disrupt the duly-undertaken work of any public body independent of the fulfillment 
of any of the rights of the people to access to information. 
 
The District has invested public funds to develop and produce information and 
programs, and holds that all information that has been authored or designed by an 
employee or employees of the District for the District is intellectual property of the 
District. 
 
The mission of the District is to protect, conserve, and improve the quality of soil and 
water through planning, technical and financial assistance, and education. In 
accomplishing this mission, the District creates and designs programs, conservation 
plans, and other reference materials to assist the public. The intent of this policy is 
to make the services, publications, and other materials available to as many people 
as possible with the assurance that the intellectual property of the District will not be 
comprised. 
 
Any use of District programs, conservation plans, and other reference materials 
should be used to meet or address the mission and/or vision of Marion Soil and 
Water Conservation District and shall not be used for personal or financial gain or 
for political purposes. 
 
Policy 
 
The District may utilize legal means to protect the intellectual property of the District, 
including but not limited to copyrights and patents, to the extent allowed under state 
and federal law. 
 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on April 1, 2009. 
 
Signed by Douglas A. Krahmer, Chair 
 

 
Public Records Disclosure  
Resolution #2005-02-03 

All requests for information made under the Public Records Law must be in 
Writing, using the Request for Information Form (see attachment A) and approved 
by the appropriate District Manager or the Board of Directors.  
 
If a person requesting information chooses to remain anonymous, they must pay a 
deposit in the amount detailed on the Request for Information form upon making the 
request.  
 
When a request is received, it shall be in-dated and forwarded to the District 
Manager or Board of Directors. The District Manager or Board of Directors shall 
make a determination of whether the information is releasable under the provisions 
of the Public Records Law.  

https://www.marionswcd.net/


 
When necessary, legal counsel will be sought to interpret Public Records Law 
relative to the given request. If the information release is approved, the District 
Manager, or other designee, shall contact, in writing, the person making the request 
to inform them of the copying cost for said information, and the time frame in which 
the request can be completed.  
 
Upon written notification by the person making the request that they are willing to 
incur the cost of copying, the District shall begin making said copies for release. 
NRCS records and data shall only be released by NRCS staff in accordance with 
their policies. 
 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on February 3, 2005. 
 
Signed by Douglas A. Krahmer, Chair 
 
See Appendix 6 for attachment A – Record Request Form 
 
 

Record Retention  
Resolution #2006-01-04 

In the Matter pertaining to the establishment and use of a Records Retention Policy 
or Policies as required by the State of Oregon under the County and Special District 
Retention Schedules by the Marion Soil & Water Conservation District 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this resolution is to determine by what administrative rules the 
Marion Soil & Water Conservation District (SWCD) will use to retain and archive all 
records according to Oregon's Administrative Rules (OAR) Chapter 166 Division 
150 covering County and Special District Retention Schedules published by the 
Oregon Secretary of State Archives Division in November 2004. 
 
Resolution 
 
WHEREAS the Marion Soil & Water Conservation District is an Oregon Special 
District that is required to follow state law; and,  
 
WHEREAS the Oregon Secretary of State Archives Division has published 
administrative rules covering County and Special District Retention Schedules in 
Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) Chapter 166 Division 150; therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Marion Soil & Water Conservation District Board of 
Directors hereby adopts to use those rules that are appropriate under Oregon's 
Administrative Rules (OAR) Chapter 166 Division 150 covering County and Special 
District Retention Schedules published by the Oregon Secretary of State Archives 
Division in November 2004 and shall further establish policy or polices that follow 
those appropriate rules and any future revisions to those rules. 
 
This resolution was adopted by a 7-0 vote of the Board of Directors at its regularly 
scheduled meeting on January 4, 2006. 

https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/viewSingleRule.action?ruleVrsnRsn=26026
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/viewSingleRule.action?ruleVrsnRsn=26026
https://www.marionswcd.net/


 
Signed by: Douglas Krahmer, Chair 
 
See Appendix 7 for Exhibit A – OAR from 2004 
See Appendix 7 for Exhibit B – Established Policies for updating rules 
 
 

Legal Disclaimers 
Resolution #2009-04-01-B 

Purpose 
 
The mission of the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District is to protect, 
conserve, and improve the quality of soil and water through planning, technical 
and financial assistance, and education. In accomplishing this mission, the 
District provides information and assistance to the public through programs, 
conservation plans, and reference materials. 
 
The District makes an effort to ensure that information provided lo the public is 
the most current, correct, and clearly expressed information possible. The District 
makes an effort to ensure that all assistance provided to the public is safe and 
legal. Nevertheless, inadvertent errors and accidents may occur. 
 
The use of legal disclaimers allows the District to specify or delimit the scope of 
rights and obligations associated with the information and programs provided to 
the public. The intent of this policy is to protect the District from unexpected 
liabilities and/or responsibilities associated with the intonation, assistance, and 
programs provided to the public. 
 
Policy 
 
The District shall utilize legal disclaimers in order to specify or delimit the scope 
of rights and obligations that may be exercised and enforced by the public in 
association with information, assistance, and programs provided by the District. 
 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on April 1, 2009. 
 
Signed by Douglas Krahmer, Chair 
 

Personnel 
 

Bereavement Leave 
Resolution #2002-09-04C 
 

Policy 
 
Bereavement leave is meant to provide employees with time away from work to 
pay respect, mourn, and tend to necessary arrangements or gatherings upon the 
death of family members, friends, and acquaintances. 
 
Employees may use accrued sick leave to attend the funeral of any person. Sick 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
https://www.marionswcd.net/


leave also may be used for bereavement and/or tending to necessary arrangements 
or family gatherings upon the death of any family member, as that term is defined in 
the District's sick leave policy. 
 
Additional leave 
 
In addition to the use of sick leave, the District will authorize up to 24 hours of 
Bereavement Leave per fiscal year for the purposes described above. This leave 
is non-accruable from fiscal year to fiscal year and any unused leave is not "paid 
off' when a person leaves District employment. 
 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on September 4, 2002. 
 
Daniel L. Goffin, Chair 
 
 

Cost of Living Adjustments 
Resolution # 2023-01-11 

Purpose 
 
This policy provides a clear, transparent, and consistent process with respect to the 
annual implementation of a cost-of-living adjustment. 
 
Definitions 
 

• Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) is an increase in wages, salaries, or 
benefits to counteract inflation. COLAs are typically equal to the percentage 
increase in the Consumer Price Index for a specific period. 

 
• Consumer Price Index (CPI) (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics) is based on an 

objective measure that estimates how much additional money a typical 
person or household needs to maintain their standard of living over time. CPI 
determines the rate of inflation and is compared yearly. When consumer 
prices, or if inflation, has not been high enough to substantiate a COLA 
increase there is no COLA increase. 

 
• Seasonal Adjustment removes the effects of recurring seasonal influences 

from many economic series, including consumer prices. The adjustment 
process quantifies seasonal patterns and then factors them out of the series 
to permit analysis of non-seasonal price movements; This allows data users 
to focus on changes that are not typical for the time of year. The unadjusted 
data are of primary interest to consumers concerned about the prices they 
pay. 

 
Policy Requirements 
 
Annually the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (Marion SWCD) will 
calculate a cost of living adjustment rate for wages and salaries and applies to all 
staff. 
 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


• By July 1, the Financial Administrator compiles information to determine the 
COLA rate. Regional CPI (Census Region-West) data is to be considered 
over national data. Information for determination: 

 
o The CPI (not seasonally adjusted) will be compared to the previous year, 

considering any shifts in the CPI over the past year, to determine a COLA; 
 

o Additional information will be a reviewed such as federal and state COLA 
calculations or projections and Marion County property tax revenue 
projections to support the proposed COLA rate; 

 
o And any other information necessary such as cost of food, healthcare, 

transportation, and energy. 
 

• The District Manager works with the Financial Administrator to calculate the 
COLA. 

 
• The District Manager submits the proposed COLA rate to the Board of 

Directors for review. 
 
• Approved COLA rates apply July 1 at the start of the next fiscal year budget. 

 
This policy was adopted by a 4 to 1 vote of the Board of Directors on January 11, 
2023. 
 
Signed by Darin Olson, Chair 
 
 

District Organizational Structure 
Resolution #2009-04-02-B with Exhibit A 
 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this resolution is to adopt an organization structure for the Marion 
Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD). 
 
Resolution 
 
WHEREAS the number of staff working on behalf of the Marion SWCD has 
substantially increased, with diverse responsibilities in support of the District's 
programs and operations; and, 
 
WHEREAS the Board of Directors of the Marion SWCD also has established Board 
Committees to assist the District in carrying out its programs, administrative 
activities, and budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS the Board of Directors of the Marion SWCD desires to effectively 
describe lines of organizational and reporting authority; now, therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Marion SWCD Board of Directors hereby adopts the 
attached organization chart as its official description of organizational structure, in 
conjunction with its adopted delegations of authority. 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


 
This resolution was adopted by a Unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on September 4, 2002. 
 
Certified on this 4th day of September 2002 
 
Signed by Daniel Goffin, Chair 
 
See Appendix 8 for Exhibit A – 2023 District Structure  
 

 
Salary Administration Plan  
Resolution # 2002-09-04-A (090402A) 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this resolution is to adopt a Salary Administration Plan on behalf of 
the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD). 
 
Resolution 
 
WHEREAS the Marion SWCD has grown in staff with resulting diversity in job 
responsibilities, skill requirements and salary levels; and, 
 
WHEREAS the Board of Directors of the Marion SWCD desires to establish 
consistent guidelines and policies in the setting and administration of staff salaries; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS the Board of Directors of the Marion SWCD desires to establish a salary 
schedule that fairly compensates its staff within the context of its financial resources, 
priorities, standing as a public entity receiving tax-based revenue, and in 
comparison, with other comparable employers; now, therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Marion SWCD Board of Directors hereby adopts the 
attached Salary Administration Plan as official policy of the District, to be followed 
and administered as provided therein, effective as of the date of adoption by the 
Board; and, further 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Marion SWCD will review the Salary Administration Plan 
no later than March of 2003 and then annually thereafter. 
 
This resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on September 4, 2002. 
 
Signed Daniel Goffin, Chair 
 
See Appendix 9 for Exhibit A – Salary Administration Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


Donated Leave 
Resolution #2002-09-04-E  
 

Policy 
 
In special circumstances involving individual medical or family hardship, the District 
Manager may authorize District employee(s) to donate accrued annual leave 
(vacation) to another District employee to use as sick leave. 
 
In approving an employee to receive donated leave, the Manager shall consider, in 
addition to the specific circumstances of the request, the employee's length of 
service with the District, past use of leave and work performance. 
 
Requests for donated leave, along with the basis for approval or denial, must be 
documented in writing. 
 
Procedure 
 

1. An employee wishing to be approved for receiving donated leave must 
submit a written request to the District Manager, explaining the situation and 
need for donated leave. 

 
2. The District Manager shall consider the request and either approve or deny 

the request in writing, describing the reason(s) for the decision. 
 

3. If the request is approved, the Administrative Coordinator will notify District 
employees and administer the donation process. 

 
4. District employees wishing to donate leave on behalf of the approved 

employee shall notify the Administrative Coordinator in writing of the number 
of hours they wish to donate. The Administrative Coordinator shall inform the 
recipient employee of the amount of donated leave that is accumulated. 

 
Limitations 
 

1. Leave is donated on an hour-for-hour basis in order to minimize the amount 
of accounting and administration involved. 

 
2. Employees may donate only accrued annual leave (vacation), up to a 

maximum of 40 hours per occurrence. Donations may be made in 
increments. 

 
3. Donated leave is converted to sick leave for the recipient employee. A 

maximum of 160 hours of donated leave may be received per occurrence. 
 

4. A recipient employee must exhaust all their own accrued leave, including 
vacation, sick leave and comp time, before using any donated leave. 

 
5. Donated leave is permanently transferred and stays with the recipient 

employee until otherwise used or the employee leaves District employment. 
6. In special instances, the Board may approve an exception to the limits in #3. 

 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on September 4, 2002. 
 
Signed by Daniel L. Goffin, Chair 
 
 

Employee Rewards and Recognition 
Resolution #2005-09-07 

Purpose 
 
This policy provides basic guidelines for the administration of Marion SWCD’s 
Employee Rewards and Recognition Program. The guidelines are applicable to all 
regular employees of Marion SWCD.  
 
The policy is designed to encourage employees to make a performance difference 
either individually or through teams. The policy recognizes achievements that 
contribute to the overall mission and goals of the Marion SWCD. 
Marion SWCD managers may recommend regular employees monetary and non-
monetary awards of up to $500.00 per fiscal year. Any monetary award(s) to 
employees shall be approved by the Board of Directors; other types of awards may 
be authorized by District's managers.  
 
This program is supplemental to the District's Annual Meeting awards program for 
non-employees, where individual recognition awards are given to directors, 
associates, partner agencies, and cooperators of the Marion SWCD. 
 
Criteria 
 
There are numerous reasons for recognizing employees. They include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 
 

• Providing exceptional customer service 
• Outstanding support of the SWCD's mission or goals 
• Being innovative/creative 
• Performing a special service above normal duties 
• Accomplishment of a difficult task 
• Identifying a process improvement 
• Initiating productivity enhancements 
• Identifying monetary savings 
• Excellence in safe work practices 

 
Guidelines for Giving Rewards 
 
Every employee deserves some form of appreciation throughout the year, even if 
only a verbal thank you or thank you note from a manager or co-worker. In order for 
the recognition to be meaningful, it must be linked to a desired behavior and be 
given in a timely manner. 
Recognition of any type must be fairly spread throughout the organization and it 
should never be an expected compensation. The recognition should be 
commensurate with the reason it is being given. 
 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
The entire policy needs a thorough revision; pay equity; other ideas...



Every employee has a responsibility to ensure that actions which merit recognition 
are brought to the attention of the manager(s).  
 
Employees, managers, and board members can nominate an employee for an 
award by submitting the Award Nomination Form (see Exhibit A). The form should 
be completely filled out and submitted to the employee's supervisor. The form lists 
general categories for awards and also gives the nominating individual the option to 
name an award that is not listed. Listed award categories are: 
 

• Outstanding Employee of the Year Award 
• Employee of the Month Award 
• Customer Service Award 
• Innovation Award 
• Safety Award 

 
The individual type of recognition will be determined by the manager(s) or Board of 
Directors. Informal types of recognition (i.e. passing along compliments from others, 
thank you notes, verbal recognition at board or staff meetings, etc.) will not require 
completion of the Award Nomination Form. 
 
Examples of Rewards and Recognition for Employees 
 
There are a variety of ways to recognize employees. Some examples of rewards 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

• Article in District newsletter 
• Lunch with Manager 
• Balloons 
• Memo to Board Chair on performance 
• Cash bonuses 
• Movie or video certificates 
• Certificates 
• Mugs 
• Discounts/gift certificates to local merchants 
• Note pads, pens, calendars, etc  
• Employee of the Month Award 
• Outstanding Employee of the Year Award 
• Employee of the Month parking space 
• Plaques 
• Employee of the Month recognition plaque 
• Recognition at staff or board meetings 
• Employee Photo Wall 
• Represent the District at special events 
• Extended lunch 
• Special celebrations 
• Flowers or potted plant 
• Special projects 
• Free breakfast / lunch / dinner certificates 
• Thank you notes 
• Holiday turkey or ham 
• T-shirts 



• Lunch with Board Chair 
• Time off coupons 

 
This policy was adopted by a six to one vote of the Board of Directors at its regularly 
scheduled meeting on September 7, 2005. 
 
Signed by Douglas A. Krahmer, Chair 
 
See Appendix 10 for Exhibit A - Employee Award Nomination Form 
 

 
Exit Interviews 
Resolution #2005-12-07 

Background 
 
An exit interview will be requested of any employee that is leaving the District. The 
employee has a right to refuse to answer the questions, but should be reassured 
that if they choose to answer the questions, the answers they give may be utilized to 
improve the District's operations and policies. The employee is under no obligation 
to divulge personal information such as views on colleagues or any personal enmity 
they have with the District. 
 
Policy and Procedures 
 
The interview questions are to be answered by the employee that is leaving the 
District, either in writing or in a meeting with either the District's managers or 2 
Board Directors. 
 
In the case that the employee does not feel comfortable answering all of the 
questions, the employee may choose which questions they want to answer. The 
answers that are given to the questions will be kept in the employee's personnel file. 
 
The exit interview is to be scheduled at the end of the day on the employee's last 
day of work. If the employee would prefer to submit written answers to the interview 
questions, the employee should let their manager know prior to their last day so that 
the questions can be prepared and distributed to the employee. 
 
This policy was adopted by a 5 -1 vote of the Board of Directors at its regularly 
scheduled meeting on December 7, 2005. 
 
Signed by Douglas A. Krahmer, Chair 
 

 
Harassment and Retaliation Free Environment 
Resolution #2020-01-08 

Table of Contents: 

• Equal employment opportunity 

• Retaliation 

• Sexual harassment 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
https://www.marionswcd.net/
BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
Needs to be legal reviewed and compared to the PPM.



• Harassment 

• Reporting an incident of harassment, discrimination or retaliation 

• Internal complaint procedure 

• External complaint procedures 

• Employment agreements 

• Additional employee support services 
 
Marion Soil and Water Conservation District has developed this policy to ensure 
that all its employees can work in an environment free from unlawful harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation.  Discrimination, harassment and retaliation are not 
acceptable.   Any employee who has questions or concerns about these policies 
should talk with our primary contact District Manager as an alternative you may 
reach Board Chair. 
 
See Appendix 11 for Exhibit A – Full Text of Harassment and Retaliation Policy. 
 
 

Interim Manager Position Filled by Board Member  
Resolution #2021-07-07 

Purpose  
 
In the event that a Board member is requested by the Board to fill in the vacant 
manager position temporarily as Interim Manager.  
 
Guidelines  
 
A board member cannot hold any officer position, or the responsibilities associated 
with that officer position during the temporary employment. Any board member who 
takes on the interim manager position agrees to suspend his/her board duties. At 
the conclusion of the interim manager term, the individual will resume board and 
officer duties. A board member stepping into the Interim Manager role cannot sign 
checks.  
 
A board member who is acting as Interim Manager will be considered an outside 
consultant. No benefits will be allotted. Insurance, cell phones, computers are not 
part of compensation. Mileage and other work-related expenses are considered 
expenses that may be reimbursed with appropriate documentation such as a trip log 
or receipts.  
 
No financial dealings between a former Interim Manager and the Marion SWCD may 
occur for a period of 120 calendar days following the conclusion of services as 
Interim Manager.  
Duties  
 

• Duties are as determined by the Board.  
• Employment hours and pay rate will be determined by the Board.  
• The term, up to 60 days, is determined by the Board. 

 
This policy was adopted by a 5-0 vote of the Board of Directors at its regularly 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
Through what process?

BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
Why? Board signs checks now. The delegation of auth gives the DM this authority.

BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
this policy may want to say that the IDM is assuming the DM duties as outlined in the job description and pay is determined within the salary range that is approved for the DM. Legal review needed.

BSANCHEZ
Sticky Note
it could say that the IDM works as outlined in the DM JD but restrict some of those duties as deemed necessary.



scheduled meeting on July 7, 2021. 
 
Signed by Rochelle Koch, Vice-Chair 
 
 

Promoting Staff to District Manager 
Resolution #2005-03-02-B (030205B) 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this resolution is to promote existing SWCD employees and to 
appoint those employees who have been filling in temporarily as the "interim 
managers" of the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) to fill the 
vacant District Manager position; and to raise their salaries according to the 
increased management responsibilities as defined by the Board and in their new job 
descriptions. 
 
Resolution 
 
WHEREAS the Marion SWCD appointed two existing employees as the "interim 
managers" to temporarily fill the vacant District Manager position while seeking to 
hire a replacement; and, 
 
WHEREAS the Marion SWCD advertised for one month for a District Manager and 
only received a limited number of applications; and, 
 
WHEREAS the Board of Directors of the Marion SWCD reviewed the applications 
and determined that none of the applicants' qualifications meet their needs; now, 
therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Marion SWCD Board of Directors hereby adopts to 
promote existing SWCD employees and appoint the two "interim managers" to fill 
the vacant District Manager position; and to raise their salaries in accordance to 
their increased management responsibilities as defined by the Board and in their 
new job descriptions, effective as of the date of adoption by the Board. 
 
This resolution was adopted by a six to one vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on March 2, 2005. 
 
Signed by Douglas Krahmer, Chair 
 

 
Group Self Insurance 
Resolution # 2002-04-03-B (40302B) 

WHEREAS,  As required by the State of Oregon Workers Compensation 
Department this Resolution must be adopted by each Special District governing 
body as a prerequisite to becoming a participant of the Special Districts Workers 
Compensation Self Insured group. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED,  Marion SWCD (hereinafter called "the district") agrees to be 
liable for the payment of any compensation due subject workers of the district or 
other amounts due to the Oregon Workers Compensation Department under ORS 
Chapter 656 incurred by the district. 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
https://www.marionswcd.net/


 
FURTHERMORE, the district understands and agrees that should the district 
terminate from the group that the district will continue to be liable for the payment of 
any compensation due its subject workers and other amounts due the Workers 
Compensation Department when such compensation and other amounts arise out 
of a period when the district was a member of the group. 
 
Effective date of coverage shall be March 1, 2002,  signature dates notwithstanding. 
 
Signed by Danial Goff, Chair on April 03, 2002 
 
 

Volunteer Workers Comp 
Resolution #2007-05-02 

WHEREAS, Marion Soil & Water Conservation District elects the following: 
Pursuant to ORS 656.031. workers’ compensation coverage will be provided to the 
classes of volunteer workers as indicated below (checked “Applicable”) and listed on 
the attached Volunteer Election Form(s). 
 
Board Members  Applicable  Not Applicable  
 
Public Officials on unpaid boards will be covered only for administrative and clerical 
functions while performing their authorized duties as elected officials. 
 
Public Safety Volunteers  Applicable  Not Applicable  
 
Public Safety Volunteers are covered at the assumed monthly wage indicated on 
the attached Volunteer Election Form (s). 
 
Other Volunteers  Applicable  Not Applicable  
 
Non-public safety volunteers and board members volunteering for duties other than 
administration and clerical functions will use the attached Volunteer Election 
Form(s) to keep track of their hours and have their assumed payroll reported in the 
correct Class Code for all their types of work using Oregon minimum wage. 
 
A roster of active board members and volunteers will be kept monthly for reporting 
purposes and submitted to SDAO quarterly or more frequently upon request. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Marion Soil & 
Water Conservation District to provide workers’ compensation coverage as 
indicated above. 
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Marion Soil & Water Conservation District 
this 2nd day of May 2007. 
 
No Signature by Douglas Krahmer, Chair 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.marionswcd.net/
BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Highlight

BSANCHEZ
Highlight



Web Site Objectives 
Resolution #2010-05-05 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this policy is to define for the Marion Soil and Water Conservation 
District employees and directors, the intended objectives of the District's website. 
 
Scope 
 
This policy applies to all the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District employees, 
directors (both elected and appointed), agents, contractors and volunteers. 
 
Background 
 
The Marion Soil and Water Conservation District has developed and operates the 
following web site, www.marionswcd.net with the following objectives: 
 

• To provide general information on the Marion SWCD. 
• To use technology as a tool to educate and enhance the availability of 
   information relating to natural resources and conservation to the public. 
• To utilize technology in communicating with the public. 

 
Policy 
 
All material on the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District Web page must 
conform to the appropriate policies and support the Mission and Vision of the 
District. 
 
Access to, and maintenance of, the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District 
web site (adding and deleting information) will be done by the District's Web Master, 
who is an employee of the District, unless the District Manager or District Board of 
Directors appoints and/or contracts with an individual or business to fulfill the 
position. 
 
It will be the responsibility of the District's Web Master or District Manager to review 
material before it is posted. In view of users' need for timely information, review of 
submitted information should take place, if possible, within a week of submission. 
 
District Board Members and Employees are encouraged to submit material on a 
regular basis promoting both the activities and information relating to natural 
resources and conservation from the District as well as from outside groups, 
organizations, or agencies that support the mission and vision of the District. 
 
The Web page may contain links to other Web sites of interest relating to natural 
resources or conservation. Although policy will not allow inclusion of links to any 
page devoted principally to the promotion of a political candidate, party or ballot 
measure, information may be placed on the web page to explain items such as a 
ballot measure as long as the information is factual and takes no position. 
 
If the District's Web Master and the District Manager are not unanimous on the 
appropriateness of a link or information being provided by others, the question may 
be referred to one of the District's committees, Board Chair or the entire Board of 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


Directors.  
 
The District's Web Master and/or District Manager reserves the right to remove any 
information found to be inappropriate within the Marion Soil and Water Conservation 
District web site without prior notice and in a manner consistent with the policies 
adopted by the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District. 
 
The District's Web page should be operated in a professional manner consistent 
with all appropriate Federal, State and Local laws, including the Digital Millennium 
Copyright Act (DMCA). 
 
The District's Web page shall have posted appropriate disclaimers and notices 
regarding the content, accuracy, ownership of materials, and any other legal 
notification regarding use and control of the web site that arise at any time. 
 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on May 5, 2010. 
 
Signed by Darin Olson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix 

Click Here to Open Attachments

1. Delegation of Authority - Exhibit A

2. Director’s Travel Policy - Exhibits A, B & C

A. Complete Text
B. Non-reimbursable
C. Procedure

3. USDA Conservation Plan Review Procedures – Exhibit A

4. Permanent Tax Rate Ballot Measure – Exhibit A

5. Public Contracting Rules and Procedures – Exhibit A

6. Public Record Request Form -  Exhibit A

• Brenda is making this.

7. Record Retention – Exhibits A & B

A. OAR from 2004
B. Established Policies for updating rules (these do not exist).

8. District Organizational Structure – Exhibit A

9. Salary Administration Plan – Exhibit A

10. Award Nomination Form – Exhibit A

11. Harassment and Retaliation Policy (Complete Text) – Exhibit A



ID# Policy# Revisions
Minor 

Updates

Archive 

Remove from 

Binder

Abolish
Priority 

Work
Admin Comm Notes

1 #2021-12-01 Delegation of 
Authority

Yes P

2
#2005-03-02-A Board 
Meeting Policy and 
Procedures

Yes P Abolished, replaced with a handbook 
or update current policy?

3 #2020-01-04 Directors 
Travel

Yes P Moderate Abolished, replaced with a handbook 
or update current policy?

4 #2019-12-04 Ag Water 
Quality Concern

Yes P

5 #2011-11-02 City of Keizer 
Economic Development 

Yes NA

6 #2005-06-01 Liaisons to 
Watershed Councils 

No No NA

7 #2003-09-03 USDA 
Conservation Plan Review

Yes Yes
Has been 
suggested

P

review plan and recommend for 
efficiency, have tech or NR comm 
review prior to board

8 #2002-09-04 Check Writing No No NA

9 #2007-11-01 Credit Card No No NA

10 #2005-05-04-A Disposing 
of Surplus Property 

Yes Low

11 #2006-07-06 Financial 
Management-

Maybe P

12 #2000-09-07 Permanent 
Tax Rate 

No No NA

13
#2021-11-03 Public 
Contracting Rules and 
Procedures

Yes P

14 # 2022-05-04 Registered 
Office Agent 

No No NA

15 #2012-03-12 Reserve 
Fund: Building Abolish 

Yes NA

16 #2020-06-10 Reserve 
Fund: Building Establish 

No No NA

17
#2012-03-07 Reserve 
Fund: Multipurpose 
Establish 

No No NA

18 #2021-04-07 Reserve 
Fund: Vehicle Abolish 

Yes NA

19 #2009-11-02 Inspection 
Policy 

Yes P

20 #2020-03-11 Limitation and 
Cap 

Yes P

21 #2009-04-01 Intellectual 
Property Protection 

No Yes Moderate wordsmithing potential legal review

22 #2005-02-03 Public 
Records Disclosure 

Yes P

23 #2006-01-04 Records 
Retention

Yes P need to draft a policy; destruction and dispolas; archive

24 #2009-04-01 Use of Legal 
Disclaimers 

No No NA cilvil rights NRCS staement where does it need to be used

25 #2002-09-04-C 
Bereavement Leave 

Yes NA

26 #2023-01-11 Cost of Living 
Adjustment 

No No NA

27 #2005-05-04 District 
Organization Structure 

No Board yes P make into policy need to have the chart approved

28 #2002-09-04-2 Donated 
Leave

No No NA

29 #2005-09-07 Employee 
Rewards 

Yes Moderate equal pay on cash bonuses

30 #2005-12-07 Exit Interview Yes P board exit intervire first option, then manager 

31 #2020-01-08 Harassment 
and Retaliation 

yes P

32 #2021-07-07 Interim 
District Manager 

Potentially Low

33 #2023-08-02 Personnel 
Policy Handbook 

Annually Planned
next review 
November 
2024

34 #2005-03-02 Promoting 
Internal Staff 

Yes NA

35 Safety Policy Handbook
Currently being 
Updated

P

36 #2002-09-04-1 Salary 
Administration Plan 

Annual Review P

Policies with Review Notes



37 #2002-04-03 Special 
Districts Group Ins

Yes P

38 #2007-05-02 Workers 
Comp for Volunteers 

Yes P

39 #2010-05-05 Website No No NA



Proposed Policy
Security Camera Access
Vehicle Use
Advocacy
District Email address-Use of District Email address
District Accounts
Entry Private property/Landowner Permission
Wildfire Smoke 
District Grant Program Process and Policy Manual
conflict of interest policy/ form



Marion Soil and Water Conservation District 
Administrative Committee – Agenda Item Brief 

Title: Pay Equity Analysis 2024 Report  

Date: 01/19/24 Agenda Item #: 2 Time Required: 20 minutes 

Submitted By: District Manager 

Requested Action: Recommend the Pay Equity Report 2024 for legal review and 
pending no significant changes submit report to the Board of Directors at the March 
2024 monthly Board meeting. 

Consultation: HR Answers Pay Equity Toolkit 

Summary: Each organization must put together a system, policy, and processes that 
provide for the comparison of similar jobs and the ongoing administration of pay in 
accordance with the groupings of comparable work within acceptable (exceptions) 
differences. 
 
Rationale: Equal Pay for Equal Work. Every worker must get equal pay for equal work 
regardless of their gender, race, age, or other protected characteristics. 

• The employer must pay the same amount as other people doing comparable 
work (including wages, bonuses, benefits, and more). 

• It is illegal for your employer to pay less than someone else because of your 
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, marital status, 
veteran status, disability, or age. 

• Your employer cannot give someone a pay cut to make their pay equal with 
other employees. 

Compliance: Oregon Pay Equity Law 
 
Admin Committee Packet Attachment/s: Marion SWCD Pay Equity Analysis 2024 
DRAFT Report 

 

https://www.marionswcd.net/


DRAFT 

1 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Marion Soil and Water 
Conservation District 

Pay Equity  
Analysis Report 

January 2024 
DRAFT 



DRAFT 

2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2024  
 

 

Completed by Brenda Sanchez 
Marion Soil and Water Conservation District Manager 

with procedures outlined in the HR Answers Pay Equity Toolkit 
 

Reviewed by: 
Administration Committee January 2024 

XX Legal Consultation 
 

Prepared for and presented to the Marion SWCD Board of Directors March 2024 
 
 

DRAFT 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

3 
 

Table of Contents 
1.0 Executive Summary (pg. 5) 
1.1 History of Pay Equity (pg. 7) 
1.2 Oregon Pay Equity (pg. 7) 
1.3 Marion SWCD Salary Administration (pg. 8) 
1.4 Pay Equity Analysis Methodology (pg. 9) 
1.5 Pay Equity Analysis Results (pg. 11) 
1.6 Benefits Analysis Results (pg. 12) 
1.7 Discussion of Results, Recommendations, and Corrective Actions (pg. 13) 
 
 
Tables 
Table 1: Positions and Salary Ranges (pg. 8) 
Table 2: Comparable Characteristics Factor and Scale Key (pg. 10) 
Table 3: Classification of Groups by Comparable Characteristics (pg. 11) 
Table 4: Groups Compared by Annual Base Pay and Bonus (pg. 12) 
Table 5: Groups Compared by Leave Benefits (pg. 12) 
Table 6: Groups Compared by Insurance and Retirement Benefits (pg. 13) 
Table 7: Pay Exceptions with Corrective Actions (pg. 14) 
Table 8: Benefit Exceptions with Corrective Actions (pg. 14) 
 
Figures 
Box 1: Annual Salary Table (pg. 8) 
Box 2: Job Descriptions (pg. 11) 

 
Appendix A: Oregon Law References (pg. 15) 
Appendix B: Key Definitions (pg. 15) 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

5 
 

Pay Equity Analysis Report 
1.0 Executive Summary 
Equal Pay for Equal Work 

Every worker must get equal pay for equal work regardless of their gender, race, age, or other 
protected characteristics. 

• The employer must pay the same amount as other people doing comparable work 
(including wages, bonuses, benefits, and more). 

• It is illegal for your employer to pay less than someone else because of your race, color, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, marital status, veteran status, disability, or 
age. 

• Your employer cannot give someone a pay cut to make their pay equal with other 
employees. 

Each organization must put together systems, policies, and processes that provide for the 
comparison of similar jobs and the ongoing administration of pay in accordance with the 
groupings of comparable work within acceptable (exceptions) differences. 
 
The Pay Equity Analysis entails reviewing job descriptions and analyzing comparable 
characteristics using the Comparable Characteristics Factor and Scale Key (Table 2). Once each 
position has been designated a comparable grouping identifier (A through E), each position in the 
same group are then compared by base pay and paid bonuses (Table 4). The results of the 
comparison are evaluated for discrepancies and any differences within comparable groups are 
indicated. Next would be to gather information related to the allowable exceptions and identify if 
corrective actions should be taken (Table 7).  
 
Next is to compare benefits for disparities among employees who perform work of comparable 
character (Tables 5 and 6). The results of the comparison are evaluated for discrepancies and 
identify if corrective actions should be taken (Table 7). 
 
Results and Corrective Actions 

Analysis of the 2023 dataset demonstrates that there is equal pay for the same job (Table 4). Pay 
differences are due to seniority and merit (Table 7) and there are no pay corrective actions 
recommended. 

The leave benefit assessment shows that there is one discrepancy (Table 5), not in comparable 
groups but across all employees. Other exceptions in leave benefits (Table 8) are attributed to 
seniority, for that reason no other corrective actions are necessary. 

Analysis of insurance and retirement offerings illustrated that there are equal offerings to all 
employees and within the comparable groups and there are no corrective actions concerning 
insurance and retirement offerings. 

 



DRAFT 

7 
 

Pay Equity Analysis Report 
1.1 History of Pay Equity 

The United States Congress passed the Equal Pay Act in 1963 as an amendment to the Fair Labor 
Standards Act of 1938. In its final form, the Equal Pay Act mandates that employers cannot award 
unequal wages or benefits to men or women working jobs that require “equal skill, effort, and 
responsibility, and which are performed under similar working conditions.”  The law also includes 
guidelines for when unequal pay is permitted, specifically based on merit, seniority, worker’s 
quality or quantity of production, and other factors not determined by gender. 

1.2 Oregon Pay Equity 

The Oregon Equal Pay Act of 2017 is the first of its kind. Oregon requires every employer (except 
the Federal Government) to have systems in place that equalize total compensation (wages and 
benefits) for all protected classes based on substantially similar work. 

Protected Classes: a group of persons distinguished by race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
national origin, marital status, veteran status, disability, or age. 

Equal Pay for Equal Work 

Every worker must get equal pay for equal work regardless of their gender, race, age, or other 
protected characteristics. 

• The employer must pay the same amount as other people doing comparable work 
(including wages, bonuses, benefits, and more). 

• It is illegal for your employer to pay less than someone else because of your race, color, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, marital status, veteran status, disability, or 
age. 

• Your employer cannot give someone a pay cut to make their pay equal with other 
employees. 

While existing Oregon law prohibits paying one gender less than another gender for “work of 
comparable character,” the new law expressly defines this standard as work that requires 
“substantially similar knowledge, skill, effort, responsibility and working conditions in the 
performance of work, regardless of job description or job title.” 

The law does provide exceptions for one employee earning more than another of comparable 
character. The difference must be based on a bona fide system(s)/factor(s) that are job-related. 
These factors include: 

• A seniority system 
• A merit system 
• A system that measures earnings by 

quantity or quality of production, 
including piece-rate work 

• Workplace locations 

• Travel, if travel is necessary and regular 
for the employee 

• Education 
• Training 
• Experience, or 
• a combination of factors. 

 



DRAFT 

8 
 

Further, Oregon law prohibits employers from screening applicants based on salary. Employers 
cannot rely on salary history in setting compensation, except for when determining pay for a 
current employee during a transfer, move, or promotion to a new position with the same 
employer. 
 
For more information regarding pay equity visit the Oregon Bureau of Labor and Industries Equal 
Pay webpage: www.oregon.gov/boli/workers/pages/equal-pay.aspx. 
 
If you have questions or think your employer may be violating this law, please contact 
boli_help@boli.oregon.gov, call 971-245-3844, or file a complaint here: 
www.oregon.gov/boli/workers/Pages/complaint.aspx 

1.3 Marion Soil and Water Conservation District Salary Administration 

Employee compensation depends on factors that are consistent with federal and state pay equity 
laws. These factors may include a merit system; seniority system; working conditions; education, 
knowledge, and experience applicable to the job position; and level of responsibility within the 
organization. The Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (Marion SWCD or District) Salary 
Administration Plan (Amended 2023) describes in detail the District’s policy on pay and benefits. 
 
The Board of Directors (Board), in consultation with the District Manager, periodically review 
employee compensation levels and may grant cost-of-living increases and step increases as 
deemed appropriate. The Board must approve any compensation increases and promotions 
recommended by the District Manager. The Administrative Committee and Board review the 
Salary Administration Plan annually. 

 
Table 1: Positions and Salary Ranges 
The listed job descriptions (revised and approved by the Board in March 2023) and associated 
salary ranges are determined using the District’s Annual Ten-Step Salary Table (Box 1).  
 

Positions Salary Range 
Administrative Assistant Range 3 
Communication and Education Specialist Range 5 through Range 7 
Conservation Planner-Livestock Pasture Range 5 through Range 6 
Conservation Planner-Natural Areas Range 5 through Range 6 
Conservation Planner-Soil Croplands Range 5 through Range 6 
Conservation Planner-Urban Range 5 through Range 6 
District Manager Range 9 through Range 10 
Financial Administrator Range 5 through Range 6 
Grants Coordinator Range 5 through Range 6 
Native and Invasive Plants Specialist Range 5 through Range 7 
Office Coordinator Range 3 through Range 5 

http://www.oregon.gov/boli/workers/pages/equal-pay.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/boli/workers/Pages/complaint.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/boli/workers/Pages/complaint.aspx


DRAFT 

9 
 

 
1.4 Pay Equity Analysis Methodology  
[ORS 652.210 (4): An evaluation process to assess and correct wage disparities among employees who 
perform work of comparable character.] 
 
Each organization must put together systems, policies, and processes that provide for the 
comparison of similar jobs and the ongoing administration of pay in accordance with the 
groupings of comparable work within acceptable (exceptions) differences. 
 
The Pay Equity Analysis entails reviewing job descriptions and analyzing comparable 
characteristics using the Comparable Characteristics Factor and Scale Key (Table 2) supplied by 
HR Answers to determine the “comparable grouping identifier” for each position (Table 3). The 
factors and scale provided were reviewed and then tailored where needed to truly represent the 
nature of the work at the District’s as recommended in the tool kit. Once each position has been 
designated a comparable grouping identifier (A through E), each position in the same group are 
then compared by base pay and paid bonuses (Table 4). The results of the comparison are 
evaluated for discrepancies and any differences within comparable groups are indicated. Next 
would be to gather information related to the allowable exceptions and identify if corrective 
actions should be taken (Table 7). An exception should only be used if there is verifiable evidence 
of its application to the employees’ pay. 
 
Next is to compare leave benefits, health, dental, vision, life insurance, and retirement benefits 
for disparities among employees who perform work of comparable character (Tables 5 and 6). 
The results of the comparison are evaluated for discrepancies and identify if corrective actions 
should be taken (Table 7). 

Box 1: Annual Ten-Step Salary Table 
An Annual Ten-Step Salary Table (Salary Table) is a matrix of ranges and steps reflecting the 
minimum and maximum salaries that the District pays for a job position. The Salary Table is used 
to establish the salary ranges and steps of each job based on the level of difficulty, responsibility, 
and qualifications required. All positions and their descriptions (including revisions) and 
associated salary ranges (or changes to) must be approved by the MSWCD Board of Directors 
 

• Range: The Salary Table has twelve [12] pay Ranges. Range 1 (lowest) to Range 12 
(highest). The pay increase moving up each range averages 9-10 percent. 

• Step: Each Range has ten [10] step rates. Step 1 (lowest) to Step 10 (highest. The pay 
increase moving up each step averages 1.5 percent.  

 
Salary increases for “meets expectations” or higher rating on an employee’s performance 
evaluation can be managed by elevating an employee a step up in a Range or by promoting to the 
next level Range. Most positions are assigned to multiple salary ranges to provide additional 
incentive and advancement in recognition of professional performance, experience, skill, and 
education.  
 
The Salary Table is included in the District’s Salary Administration Plan and is updated when 
salary levels change such as cost-of-living increases. 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

10 
 

Table 2: Comparable Characteristics Factor and Scale Key 
Factors Scale 
Knowledge – Requirement to know and understand data, 
facts, processes, and ways to apply information and 
methodology.  Familiarity, awareness, understanding, or 
learning gained through experience or study. Levels 

Knowledge 

Fifteen+ years 6 
Ten+ years 5 
Six - Nine years 4 
Three - Five years 3 
One - Two years 2 
No education or experience  1 
Effort - The requirements to consider alternate points of view, 
make decisions without sufficient information, determine 
course of action to achieve desired results, develop conceptual 
explanations, and remain rational during times of significant 
pressure and urgency.  

Effort 

Determine and lead the direction of the organization. 6 
Continually develop and recommend new opportunities and 
operations.  5 

Maintain ongoing operations and integration with current ideas. 4 
Complete work within parameters and self-prioritize. 3 
Complete work within defined parameters and defined priority. 2 
Complete routine tasks with well-defined instruction and guidance. 1 
Responsibility – The state, quality, or fact of being 
responsible; something for which the job is responsible; a duty, 
task, obligation, or burden. 

Responsibility 

Overall Organization 6 
Management Unit 5 
Specialist 4 
Own work with review as needed 3 
Own work with review 2 
Own work with review at each step 1 
Skill - The ability or degree to which application of learned 
information is required; the ability to do something well or 
with expertise.  

Skill 

Advanced 5 
Proficient 4 
Intermediate 3 
Entry 2 
Basic 1 
Working Conditions – The work environment with 
consideration for travel. 

Working 
Condition 

Mostly travel 3 
Office Environment and Travel 2 
Standard Office Environment 1 

 

 



DRAFT 

11 
 

 

1.5 Pay Equity Analysis Results 

Tables 3 and 4 illustrate the results of the classification of groups by comparable character and 
the comparison of base pay and bonus by group.      

Table 3: Classification of Groups by Comparable Characteristics 

Job Title 
Comparable Characteristics Characteristic 

Grouping Knowl
edge 

Respon
sibility Effort Skill Work 

Cond 

Administrative Assistant 3 2 2 2 1 A 
Office Coordinator 3 2 2 2 1 A 
Financial Administrator 3 3 3 3 1 B 
Grants Coordinator 3 3 3 3 1 B 
Conservation Planner 3 3 3 3 2 C 
Conservation Planner 3 3 3 3 2 C 
Conservation Planner 3 3 3 3 2 C 
Conservation Planner 3 3 3 3 2 C 
Comm and Education Specialist 4 4 4 4 2 D 
Native and Invasive Specialist 4 4 4 4 2 D 
District Manager 4 6 6 5 1 E 

 

 

 

 

Box 2: Job Descriptions  
To analyze the Comparable Characteristics (Table X), a standardized document inclusive of 
the characteristics should be used. A job description is the typical place for an organization 
to capture this type of information. When properly developed, job descriptions have the 
potential for a wide variety of administrative and compliance applications. Detailed job 
descriptions should include: 

• Percentage of time spent 
• Essential duties 
• Clearly defined knowledge 
• Clearly defined skill 
• Clearly defined effort 
• Clearly defined responsibility 
• Clearly defined working conditions “includes work environment, hours, time of day, 

physical surroundings and potential hazards encountered by an employee.” 



DRAFT 

12 
 

Table 4: Groups Compared by Annual Base Pay and Bonus (Differences in Bold) 

Employee 
Unique ID 

Characteristic 
Grouping 

Annual Base 
Compensation 

Annual 
Bonus 2023 

01 A $47,817 $175.00 
02 A $54,921 $175.00 
03 B $66,756 $350.00 
04 B $66,756 $350.00 
05 C $62,025 $350.00 
06 C $65,574 $350.00 
07 C $63,206 $350.00 
08 C $62,025 $175.00 
09 D $69,124 $350.00 
10 D $69,124 $350.00 
11 E $101,686 $350.00 

 

1.6 Benefits Equity Analysis Results 

Tables 5 and 6 illustrate the comparison of leave, insurance, and retirement benefit offerings by 
group.  

Table 5: Groups Compared by Leave Benefits (Differences in Bold) 

Employee 
Unique ID 

Characteristic 
Grouping 

Annual 
Leave 

 (hrs./year) 

Sick Leave 
(hrs./year) 

1-10 years 
8 hrs. 

annual 
leave on 
hire date 

Floating 
Holidays 

Paid 
Holidays 

01 A 72 48 8 2 10 
02 A 60 48 0 2 10 
03 B 96 96 8 2 10 
04 B 144 96 0 2 10 
05 C 96 96 8 2 10 
06 C 96 96 8 2 10 
07 C 96 96 8 2 10 
08 C 96 96 8 2 10 
09 D 96 96 8 2 10 
10 D 120 96 8 2 10 
11 E 96 96 8 2 10 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

13 
 

Table 6: Groups Compared by Insurance and Retirement Benefit Offerings  

Employee 
Unique 

ID 

Characteristic 
Grouping 

Retirement 
Offerings 

Dental 
Insurance 
Offering 

Medical 
Insurance 
Offering 

Vision 
Insurance 
Offering 

Life 
Insurance 
Offering 

01 A Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
02 A Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
03 B Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
04 B Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
05 C Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
06 C Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
07 C Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
08 C Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
09 D Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
10 D Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
11 E Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 

1.7 Discussion of Results, Recommendations, and Corrective Actions 

Results and Corrective Actions 

Analysis of the 2023 dataset demonstrates that there is equal pay for the same job (Table 4). Pay 
differences are due to seniority and merit (Table 7) and there are no pay corrective actions 
recommended. 

The leave benefit assessment shows that there is one discrepancy (Table 5), not in comparable 
groups but across all employees. Every year on an employee’s annual hire date an employee 
receives eight [8] hours of annual/vacation leave every year up to their tenth anniversary and 
then the benefit ends. Two employees who have worked with the District over ten years do not 
receive the benefit. It is recommended that the District take corrective action (Table 8) and 
amend the leave benefit by removing the ten-year cap and allowing the benefit for the entire 
length of employment with the District so everyone receives the benefit annually.  

Other exceptions in leave benefits (Table 8) are attributed to seniority, for that reason no other 
corrective actions are necessary. 

Analysis of insurance and retirement offerings illustrated that there are equal offerings to all 
employees and within the comparable groups and there are no corrective actions concerning 
insurance and retirement offerings. 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Annual Ten-Step Salary Table (Box 2) should be assessed during the 
next review of the Salary Administration Plan and any differences in salary structure between 
ranges and between steps should be identified and corrective actions should be taken to mediate 
any differences in salary structure to ensure compliance with pay equity, when establishing job 
descriptions and promoting employees. 



DRAFT 

14 
 

Table 7: Pay Exceptions Within Groups with Corrective Actions 

Seniority Exception Pay 

Unique ID Characteristic 
Grouping 

Seniority 
(Years) 

Annual 
Rate of Pay 

Corrective 
Action 

01 Group A 8.5 $47,817 None 

02 Group A 17.5 $54,921 None 
Seniority Exception Pay 

Unique ID Characteristic 
Grouping 

Seniority 
(Years) 

Annual 
Rate of Pay 

Corrective 
Action 

05 Group C 1 $62,025 None 

06 Group C 2 $65,574 None 

07 Group C 1 $63,206 None 

08 Group C 0.5 $62,025 None 
Annual Bonus Exception 

Unique ID Characteristic 
Grouping 

Annual 
Bonus Exceptions Corrective 

Action 
05 Group C $350.00 Greater than 

six months None 

06 Group C $350.00 Greater than 
six months None 

07 Group C $350.00 Greater than 
six months None 

08 Group C $175.00 Less than six 
months None 

 

Table 8: Benefit Exceptions with Corrective Actions 

Annual Leave on Hire Date Exception 
Unique 

ID 
Characteristic 

Grouping 
Annual Leave 
on Hire Date  Exceptions Corrective Action 

02 A 0 Employed over 
10 years Remove 10-year cap 

04 B 0 Employed over 
10 years Remove 10-year cap 

Seniority Exception for Annual Leave 
Unique 

ID 
Characteristic 

Grouping 

Annual 
Leave 

(hrs./year) 
Exceptions Corrective Action 

01 A 60 8.5 years None 

02 A 72 17.5 years None 

03 B 96 1.5 Years None 

04 B 144 15.0 Years None 

09 D 96 2.0 years None 

10 D 120 5.5 years None 

 



DRAFT 

15 
 

Appendix A – Oregon Law References 

 ORS 652.210 - 652.235 Chapter 652 – Hours; Wages; Wage Claims; Records 
 ORS 659A.357 – Restricting Salary History Inquiries 
 OAR 839-008 – Chapter 839 Division 8 Pay Equity 

Appendix B – Key Definitions 

• Benefits: The rate of contribution, beyond what is required by federal, state, or local law, 
that an employer makes irrevocably to a trustee or to a third person under a plan, fund, or 
program. 

• Bonus: An amount that is paid or something of monetary or quantifiable value that is 
given to an employee by an employer in addition to the employee’s regular rate of pay, 
typically as a means of encouragement or in recognition of superior performance. 

• Comparable Characteristics (Table X) [Oregon Administrative Rule 652.210 (16)] 
Comparable character means work that requires substantially similar knowledge, skill, 
effort, responsibility, and working conditions in the performance, regardless of job 
description or job title. The law requires each job in the organization to be evaluated 
against five (5) comparable characteristics. 

• Compensation: Includes wages, salary, bonuses, benefits, fringe benefits and equity-
based compensation. Compensation does not include tips or reimbursement for any 
actual costs incurred including, but not limited to, relocation reimbursements, mileage, 
and out-of-pocket expenses. 

• Education: The act or process of acquiring knowledge through systematic instruction, 
especially through an accredited academic institution. Education considerations may 
include but are not limited to substantive knowledge acquired through relevant 
coursework, as well as any completed certificate or degree programs. 

• Merit System: An orderly progression of an employee’s pay from the established 
minimum to maximum rate of a salary range based on documented performance. May 
include salary adjustments resulting from promotions, special merit increases or other 
personnel actions. A merit system provides for variations in pay based upon employee 
performance as measured through job-related criteria, for example, a written performance 
evaluation plan or policy that measures employee performance using a set numerical or 
other established rating scale, such as from “unsatisfactory” to “exceeds expectations,” 
and takes employees’ ratings into account in determining employee pay rates. 

• Rate: with reference to wages: 
o The basis of compensation for services by an employee for an employer. 
o Compensation based on the time spent on the performance of the services, on 

the number of operations accomplished or on the quantity produced or handled. 
• Salary: A predetermined amount constituting all or part of the employee’s compensation 

paid for each pay period of one week or longer (but not to exceed one month).  
• Training: The process by which someone is taught the skills needed for a job. Training 

considerations may include, but are not limited to, on-the-job training acquired in current 
or past positions as well as training acquired through a formal training program. 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors652.html
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors652.html
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors659A.html
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors659A.html
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/viewSingleRule.action?ruleVrsnRsn=252630
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/viewSingleRule.action?ruleVrsnRsn=252630


DRAFT 

16 
 

• Wages: All compensation for performance of service by an employee for an employer, 
whether paid by the employer or another person or paid in cash or any medium other 
than cash. 

• Working Conditions: Includes work environment, hours, time of day, physical 
surroundings and potential hazards encountered by an employee, as those terms are 
defined in OAR 839-008-0010. 

 


	01 01 Binder1
	02 10-16-23 Admin Committee Minutes DRAFT
	03 11-17-23 Admin Committee Minutes DRAFT
	04 Policy Binder V.1 2023 Edits
	Table of  Contents
	Delegation of Authority (2021-12-21)
	Meeting Policy and Procedure (2005-03-02)
	Travel Policy (2020-01-08-A)

	External Communications
	Ag Water Quality Concern (2019-12-04)
	City of Keizer Economic Development (2011-11-02)
	Liaisons to Watershed Councils (2005-06-01)
	USDA Conservation Plan Review (2004-01-20)

	Financial
	Check Writing (2002-09-04)
	Credit Card (2007-07-11)
	Disposing of Surplus Property (2005-05-04)
	Financial Management (2006-07-06)
	Permanent Tax Rate (2000-09-07)
	Public Contracting (2021-11-03)
	Registered Office Agent (2022-05-04)
	Reserve Fund : Building Abolish (2012-03-12)
	Reserve Fund : Building Establish (2020-06-10)
	Reserve Fund: Multipurpose Establish (2012-03-07)
	Reserve Fund: Vehicle Abolish (2021-04-07)

	Grants
	Inspection Policy (2009-11-02)
	Limitation and Cap (2020-03-11)

	Legal
	Intellectual Property Protection (2009-04-01)
	Public Records Disclosure (2005-02-03)
	Records Retention (2006-01-04)
	Use of Legal Disclaimers (2009-04-01)

	Personnel
	Bereavement Leave (2002-09-04-C)
	Cost of Living Adjustment (2023-01-11)
	District Organization Structure (2005-05-04)
	Donated Leave (2002-09-04-2)
	Employee Rewards (2005-09-07)
	Exit Interview (2005-12-07)
	Harassment and Retaliation (2020-01-08)
	Interim District Manager (2021-07-07)
	Promoting Internal Staff (2005-03-02)
	Salary Administration Plan (2002-09-04-1)
	Special Districts Group Ins. (2002-04-03)
	Workers Comp for Volunteers (2007-05-02)
	Website (2010-05-05)


	05 MSWCD Policy Review Notes
	06 MSWCD Proposed Policies
	07 Pay Equity Analysis Report 2024 Final DRAFT
	Committee Item Brief Pay Equity Analysis Report
	Pay Equity Analysis Report 2024 Final DRAFT
	Box 1: Annual Salary Table (pg. 8)
	Box 1: Annual Ten-Step Salary Table



	01 01-19-24 Admin Committee Agenda




Attachment A  


Resolution #2021-12-01 


Delegation of Authority 


 


 


District Manager .............................................................................................................. 1 


The Board ....................................................................................................................... 2 


Chair ................................................................................................................................ 2 


Vice-Chair ....................................................................................................................... 3 


Secretary-Treasurer ........................................................................................................ 3 


Program Committee ........................................................................................................ 4 


Administrative Committee ............................................................................................... 4 


Education Committee ...................................................................................................... 5 


District employees ........................................................................................................... 5 


 


1.  The Board grants general authority to the District Manager to: 
a. Serve as "Appointing Authority" in personnel matters, including hiring for 


authorized or established staff positions (except as may be limited or conditioned 


from time-to-time by Board directive and Annual Salary Table), developing and 


modifying position descriptions for approval by the Board, signing Board-


approved position descriptions on behalf of the District, periodic performance 


appraisal of employees, discipline and discharge of employees according to the 


District's adopted personnel policies, and administering the District's approved 


Annual Salary Table; 


 


b. Serve as "Budget Officer" for purposes of developing the District's annual budget, 


subject to other authority which may be delegated in that regard by the Board; 


 


c. With the assistance of staff and the Program Committee, develop the Annual 


Work Plan for recommendation to the Board, subject to approval of the Program 


Committee; 


 


d. Administer, manage, conduct, coordinate, and authorize expenditures up to 


$5,000 for the day-to-day operations of the District within the approved levels and 


types of resources and consistent with the policies, plans and interests of the 


District; 


 



BSANCHEZ

Highlight



BSANCHEZ

Highlight



BSANCHEZ

Highlight



BSANCHEZ

Sticky Note

Should we add the Budget here







e. Represent the District with other districts, agencies, associations, partners, 


organizations, legislators and landowners consistent with the policies, plans and 


interests of the District; 


 


f. Further delegate, in writing or through position descriptions or verbally as 


necessary, appropriate portions of this authority to individual staff members to 


ensure the District's successful, continuous operations and service; 


 


g. Sign on behalf of the District legal documents, agreements, plans and other 


documents, as authorized or directed by the Board; 


 


h. Establish financial accounts on behalf of the District, as directed or authorized by 


the Board; 


 


i. Establish purchase agreements or accounts with retail or wholesale suppliers for 


acquisition of routine materials, supplies, equipment or services for District 


purposes; 


 


j. Establish, when necessary, debit or credit card agreements or accounts for 


purchases of authorized materials, supplies, services or capital items on behalf of 


the District with any additional authorized users to be approved in advance by the 


Board; 


 


k. Sign checks (except for payment of her/his own expenses or items he/she has 


ordered), authorize expenditures or make purchases on behalf of the District for 


personnel, materials, supplies, services or capital items specifically authorized in 


the currently approved budget; and for the same type of expenses that are 


consistent with the budget, but not specifically authorized, in amounts less than 


$3,000 as two signatures are then required for amounts of $3,000 or above. 


2.  The Board retains the sole authority to hire and fire the District Manager. 


3.  The Board grants general authority to the Chair to: 
a. Represent the District with other districts, agencies, associations, partners, 


organizations, legislators and landowners consistent with the policies, plans and 


interests of the District; 


 


b. Conduct the regular and special meetings of the Board, consistent with statutory 


provisions, normal and accepted meeting practices, and the policies and best 


interests of the District: 


 


c. Sign on behalf of the District legal documents, agreements, plans and other 


documents, as authorized or directed by the Board; 







d. Sign checks on behalf of the District for authorized expenditures, except for 


payment of her/his own expenses or items he/she has ordered; 


 


e. Make purchases on behalf of the District of authorized materials, supplies, 


services and capital items as authorized or directed by the Board; 


 


f. Participate in job applicant interviews for the District Manager position and 


candidate interviews for vacant Director positions. 


g. Participate in periodic performance reviews of the District Manager. 


 


h. Establish and disband ad-hoc committees and appoint the Chair and members 


thereof; 


 


i. Commit or authorize, without advance Board authority, expenditures up to 


$5000.00 and/or negligible staff time in support of activities or projects of other 


organizations that are consistent with the policies, plans and interests of the 


District provided that such action be reported to the Board at its next regularly 


scheduled meeting; Serve as the Board's "Contract Officer" for purposes of the 


public contracting process or to delegate such responsibility for individual 


projects. 


 


j. Serve as "Appointing Authority" in personnel matters in the absence or 


unavailability of the District Manager, or if there is a vacancy in that position until 


the position is otherwise filled by the Board. 


4.  The Board grants general authority to the Vice-Chair to: 
a. Act with the general authorities of the Chair in case of the absence or 


unavailability of the Chair, or in the case of a vacancy in that office until the office 


is otherwise filled by the Board; 


 


b. Sign checks on behalf of the District for authorized expenditures, except for 


payment of her/his own expenses or items he/she has ordered; 


5.  The Board grants general authority to the Secretary-Treasurer to: 
a. Sign on behalf of the District legal documents, agreements, plans and other 


documents as authorized or directed by the Board; 


 


b. Sign checks on behalf of the District for authorized expenditures, except for 


payment of her/his own expenses or items he/she has ordered; 


 


c. Deposit, withdraw or transfer District funds in its various accounts in the best 


interests of the District and consistent with the approved budget and accepted 


accounting practices; 



BSANCHEZ

Highlight



BSANCHEZ

Highlight



BSANCHEZ

Sticky Note

We do not currently have the vice-chair as an approved check signer with the bank-do we need to do this?







d. Authorize the District Manager to deposit, withdraw or transfer District funds in its 


various accounts in the best interests of the District and consistent with the 


approved budget and accepted accounting practices; 


 


e. Provide monthly draft minutes for Board review and approve. 


6.  The Board grants general authority to the Program Committee to: 
a. Determine the frequency, location, timing and other logistics of its meetings; 


 


b. Designate a Chair, set guidelines of operation and involve District staff as it 


requires; 


 


c. Research, investigate, report and recommend to the Board in the areas of 


conservation programs and methods, technical advances and systems, 


conservation issues and policies, and District participation in activities or efforts 


related to soil and water conservation; 


 


d. Act as first level of review for proposed project or program grant applications, 


ideas or proposals, requests for special projects funds, or requests for support of 


activities or projects of other organizations which includes negligible staff time; 


 


e. Have one or more of its members participate in periodic performance reviews of 


the District Manager; have one or more of its members participate in job 


applicant interviews upon the request of the District Manager; have one or more 


of its members participate in job applicant interviews for the District Manager 


position and in candidate interviews for vacant Director positions. 


7.  The Board grants general authority to the Administrative Committee to: 
a. Determine the frequency, location, timing and other logistics of its meetings; 


 


b. Designate a Chair, set guidelines of operation and involve District staff as it 


requires; 


 


c. Research, investigate, report and recommend to the Board in the areas of 


personnel, salary & benefits, budget, financial & accounting practices,  


purchasing and other administrative activities, policies and processes; 


 


d. Assist the District Manager or staff in the development of or changes to the 


District's administrative policies or practices, and act as the first level of review 


for administrative matters. 


 



BSANCHEZ

Highlight



BSANCHEZ

Sticky Note

Review monthly draft minutes for Board approval.



BSANCHEZ

Highlight



BSANCHEZ

Sticky Note

Change to all committees



BSANCHEZ

Highlight



BSANCHEZ

Sticky Note

Update to reflect new committee structure.



BSANCHEZ

Cross-Out







e. Develop and recommend to the Board the position description for the District 


Manager and any subsequent changes thereto; Have one or more of its 


members participate in periodic performance reviews of the District Manager; 


 


f. May act as the first level of appeal for grievances and discipline (including 


discharge), and as the first level of reviewing complaints by following all 


applicable laws and policies involving the District Manager. 


8.   The Board grants general authority to the Education Committee to: 
a. Determine the frequency, location, timing and other logistics of its meetings; 


 


b. Designate a Chair, set guidelines of operation and involve District staff as it 


requires; 


 


c. Research, investigate, report and recommend to the Board in the areas of natural 


resources education information and opportunities, to be aware of District natural 


resources education activities and to participant in reviewing the applications and 


making recommendations to the Board for the District’s CLEAR grant program. 


9.  The Board grants specific authority to all District employees to: 
a. Perform the duties and responsibilities of their approved position description; 


 


b. Make purchases of authorized materials, supplies, services and similar items in 


amounts up to $500 when directed or approved by the District Manager; 


 


c. Perform such other duties and responsibilities as may be from time-to-time 


delegated to them by their supervisor, District Manager or Board of Directors; 


 


 


 


This policy was adopted by a six to zero vote of the Board of Directors at its regularly 


scheduled meeting on December 1, 2021. 


Amended: 


• September 4, 2002 


• October 2, 2002 


• December 1, 2021 


 


 



BSANCHEZ

Cross-Out



BSANCHEZ

Cross-Out








#2020-01-08 - A 
Directors Travel  
Amends #2005-11-02 


 
Amendments: 


• Policy In lieu of actual and necessary expenses #2006-06-07 
 
Exhibits: 


• A (Non-reimbursable travel expenses) 


• B (Procedures) 
 
 
Purpose ........................................................................................................................... 2 


General Guidelines.......................................................................................................... 2 


Travel Guidelines ............................................................................................................ 3 


Air travel .......................................................................................................................... 3 


Change in Travel Status ............................................................................................... 3 


Class of Service ........................................................................................................... 4 


Fares ............................................................................................................................ 4 


Flight Information ......................................................................................................... 4 


Frequent Flier Mileage ................................................................................................. 4 


Payment ....................................................................................................................... 4 


Car Rental ....................................................................................................................... 4 


Personal Car ................................................................................................................... 4 


Rail and Bus .................................................................................................................... 5 


Taxi/Bus/Limo .................................................................................................................. 5 


Liability and property damage insurance ......................................................................... 5 


For Personal Cars Used on District Business: ............................................................. 5 


For Rental Cars Used on District Business .................................................................. 6 


Change of Plans .............................................................................................................. 6 


Conferences, Meetings, Trainings and Meals ................................................................. 6 


Payment for Lodging and Director Reimbursement......................................................... 6 


Shared Accommodations ................................................................................................ 6 


Conduct ........................................................................................................................... 7 


Reimbursement ............................................................................................................... 7 


Amendment  #2006-06-07 ............................................................................................. 10 



https://www.marionswcd.net/





Purpose ......................................................................................................................... 10 


Scope ............................................................................................................................ 10 


Authority ........................................................................................................................ 11 


Responsibilities ............................................................................................................. 11 


District's Business Manager ....................................................................................... 11 


Elected Directors and Associate Directors ................................................................. 11 


Schedule for Reimbursement ........................................................................................ 11 


 


Purpose 
 
The Marion Soil & Water Conservation District (District) realizes the importance of 
having a well informed and well-trained Board of Directors and encourages its members 
to participate in local, regional, state and national business meetings, training seminars 
and conferences. The District's Board of Directors shall recognize that they are being 
afforded educational opportunities through attendance at various seminars or 
conferences, in order to improve their effectiveness as board members and as elected 
public officials; and are encouraged to devote the time necessary to perform the 
responsibilities associated with their board positions. 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform standards for travel by all District 
Directors. This policy applies to all Directors traveling to attend local, regional, state and 
national business meetings, training seminars and conferences for the benefit of the 
District; and shall only apply to officially approved travel including local, non-local and 
out-of-State, unless stated differently elsewhere in this policy. It is therefore the practice 
of the District to reimburse out-of-pocket costs associated with approved attendance at 
local, regional, state and national business meetings, training seminars and 
conferences. 


General Guidelines 
 
The guideline for expenses to qualify for reimbursement is reasonableness, i.e.: What a 
prudent person would do if they were spending their own money (most cost effective or 
efficient method for the District). Reimbursement shall be at the most economical cost 
determined by comparing all alternatives. Directors traveling on District business should 
do so in the most reasonable economic manner possible. This would include obtaining 
government rates or special conference rates at hotels, "shopping" for reasonable 
airfares, and using public transportation if available and reasonably convenient. 
Carpooling is encouraged but not required. 
 
The objective of these guidelines is to provide the Directors of the Marion Soil & Water 
Conservation District with the policies and procedures for receiving authorization to 
travel, reporting expenses, and obtaining reimbursement when on District business. 







Travel Guidelines 
 


• All travel by the Directors of the Marion Soil and Water Conservation District shall 
be pre-authorized and approved by the Board of Directors and recorded in the 
District meeting minutes unless stated differently elsewhere in this policy. 
 


• The Board of Directors shall designate and approve a Director(s) to attend 
various local, state, regional, and national conventions and meetings other than 
trainings provided by Special Districts Association of Oregon and the amount 
does not exceed $75.00; and record the Director(s) name(s) attending in the 
District meeting minutes. It is the intention of the District to offer training to as 
many Directors as possible within the funding appropriated for a conference or 
training. Preference will be given to those Directors who serve as officers of the 
District, who have not previously attended a training session or conference, 
and/or to those who are new to the Board. The Chair of the District Board will 
resolve any conflicts that may arise regarding conference attendance. 
 


• Directors who represent partner organizations and who have travel funds 
available from those organizations should use those funds, whenever possible, 
prior to asking for District funds. 
 


• Directors and Associate Directors attending Marion SWCD hosted, sponsored or 
organized trainings, where paying a fee is required, may attend free of charge as 
long as the information being provided is not used for personal gain or violates 
Oregon Ethics Laws for public officials. 
 


• Directors should obtain and complete a Travel Authorization Form when feasible 
from District staff before traveling, whether reimbursed or not so the request may 
be submitted to the Board of Directors for approval at their next District board 
meeting. 


Air travel 
 


Change in Travel Status 
 
Costs incurred due to changes while in travel status shall not be reimbursed unless 
approved by the Board of Directors. If the change results from a District business 
related incident, the District will pay the associated fees. If the change results from a 
non-District related incident the Director is responsible for the charges incurred.  
 
Changes in costs due to an emergency are reimbursable. For the purposes of this 
policy, "emergency" shall be defined as: an incident which places the Director in 
immediate harm, medical incident, the death or serious illness of a family member, 
hospitalization, inclement weather conditions, flight cancellations beyond control of the 
Director, or an incident not caused by the Director. 







 


Class of Service 
 
When traveling on domestic routes, District Directors should request the lowest 
available fare in coach class. Travel in any other class of service must be pre-approved 
by the Board of Directors during a District board meeting. 
 


Fares 
 
Directors should make their ticket reservations as far in advance as possible in order to 
take advantage of any special rates offered by the airlines. 


 


Flight Information 
 
District Directors should inform the Business Manager of their flight information to and 
from their destination while on District business. This information is important if an 
emergency or extenuating circumstance arises and the Director needs to be contacted 
or whereabouts known. 
 


Frequent Flier Mileage 
 
Any frequent flier mileage obtained on District business shall not be used for personal 
use. Directors should also keep in mind the importance of obtaining the lowest available 
fares in lieu of earning frequent flier miles. 
 


Payment 
 
District Directors will be reimbursed by check from the District for pre-approved air 
travel. 


Car Rental 
 
Use of rental cars at travel destinations is limited to circumstances where other 
transportation is either more expensive or impractical. Further, rental cars are only 
permitted for travel associated with remote destinations reached by commercial carrier. 
(See the section on Liability and Property Damage Insurance for more information on 
car rental insurance.) 


Personal Car 
 
Reimbursement for travel by private car will generally be authorized under only one of 
the following circumstances: 
 







• When common carrier service is not available without undue loss of time. 
 


• When two or more Directors are eligible for similar travel authorization and their 
driving together would mean an overall savings to the District (the Board of 
Directors is responsible for making such a determination before approving the 
travel request). 


 


• When use of an automobile will permit the Director to make stops in route and 
perform official duties more effectively. 


 


• When it will cost the District no more than by other means. 
 


• When the use of an automobile will not require the Director to be away from their 
official duties for a substantially longer period than travel by common carrier. 
Private car mileage, when authorized, will be reimbursed for either in-state or 
out-of-state trips at the amount specified by Oregon's state mileage allowance 
rates. If circumstances require additional driving within the vicinity, the traveler 
should show this mileage separately. Bridge and turnpike tolls will be reimbursed. 
Receipts should be obtained if possible. All mileage must be shown from point to 
point. The Business Manager will verify the reasonableness of the mileage using 
an internet mapping program. 


Rail and Bus 
 
Trains and buses are acceptable, optional means of transportation. In cases of long 
distances, time considerations are often restrictive. Directors should use coach class 
unless pre-approved by the appropriate Board of Directors. Reservations shall be the 
responsibility of the Director traveling and will be reimbursed according to policy. 


Taxi/Bus/Limo 
 
Bus/Limo service should be given preference whenever available and economical. Taxi 
trips are acceptable when necessary to and from airports. Directors must obtain receipts 
for reimbursement 
 


Liability and property damage insurance 
 


For Personal Cars Used on District Business: 
 
Liability coverage for personal cars on District business in Oregon is covered through 
the Special Districts Association of Oregon. Coverage carried by the owner would apply 
first, in event of an accident, with costs above those limits being covered by Special 
Districts Association of Oregon. A Director traveling out of Oregon on District business 
and using his or her personal vehicle is covered for only liability under Special Districts 







Association of Oregon. Physical damage coverage is not provided by Special Districts 
Association of Oregon or by the District itself on personal cars. 
 


For Rental Cars Used on District Business 
 
The District's coverage for physical damage on non-owned or rental cars is $25,000. 
Should the replacement of a non-owned or rental car exceed $25,000 then the District 
recommends the Director purchase the additional collision insurance that is available 
through the rental agency. 


Change of Plans 
 
If travel plans must be changed, it is the Director's responsibility to contact the hotel, if 
possible 24 hours prior to the day of arrival to cancel the reservation. Please obtain and 
keep the cancellation number to assure that a "no-show" charge will be avoided. 


Conferences, Meetings, Trainings and Meals 
 
If traveling to a meeting, training or conference that has prearranged hotel space, the 
Director shall make their own room reservations. All authorized hotel expenses will be 
reimbursed directly to the Director. If meals are included in the registration fee for a 
conference, training or meeting, the Director shall not be reimbursed for any out-of-
pocket expenses incurred by the Director, should he or she choose not to attend that 
meal. When attending a conference or seminar that does not require overnight travel 
and meals are not included in the conference/seminar fees the Director shall be 
reimbursed for meals according to the proper rate of per diem. This includes both in- 
and out-of-state conferences and seminars. 
 


Payment for Lodging and Director Reimbursement 
 
Upon departure from the hotel, Directors should use their personal credit card and 
obtain a detailed statement. The District shall reimburse only authorized lodging 
expenses at actual cost. Original hotel statements are required and shall be attached to 
the Travel Expense Form and submitted to the Business Manager for reimbursement. 


Shared Accommodations 
 
When an authorized Director shares a hotel room with non-District individuals, such as 
family members or colleagues from other entities, reimbursement will be as follows: 
 


• If shared with non-District individuals who receive no travel money from another 
source and there is no increase in cost, the District Director will be fully 
reimbursed. 







 


• If shared with non-District individuals who receive no travel money from another 
source, and there is an increased cost, the District Director shall be reimbursed 
at not more than the single occupancy rate. 


 


• If shared with non-District individuals who receive travel money from another 
source. the District traveler shall be reimbursed a proportionate amount of the 
room cost. The reimbursement will be based on the total amount paid divided by 
the number of persons sharing the room. The receipt must show the total amount 
paid for multiple-occupancy and that the District Director was accompanied by 
one or more persons. If this information is not on the hotel invoice, a list of people 
who shared the room should be added. 


Conduct 
 
While on District business Directors shall: 
 


• Not consume intoxicants which would impair an individual's ability to represent 
the District, or which would reflect discredit or embarrassment on the District. 


 


• Not engage in social activities that cause embarrassment to the District. 
 


• Not allow immediate family or friends to travel at District expense.  
 


• Not conduct personal business or business not related to the District. 
 


• Not use illegal drugs or barbiturates. 
 


• Any Director under a doctor's care for serious or life-threatening illnesses or 
conditions must provide a written notice from the treating physician of the 
Director's ability to travel and submit this notice to the Board of Directors prior to 
obtaining travel approval. Failure to provide written notice will result in denial of 
the travel request. 


 


Reimbursement 
 
The extent of reimbursement will depend on approved budgetary procedures as 
determined and approved by the District's Board of Directors and in compliance with 
these guidelines. Directors using contract, gift, or grant funds should follow the regular 
District travel policy unless there are specific restrictions provided by the contract, gift or 
grant. Any reimbursement will be based on travel by the usual, direct route. If Directors 
plan to use a less direct route, or a more expensive mode of travel than may be 
authorized as reimbursable, the Directors must bear the extra costs. 
 







• All Directors shall exercise good judgment and discretion in spending District 
funds while traveling.  


 


• The District shall only reimburse officially approved travel expenses and receipts 
are required for transportation fares (air, bus, rail) and other approved travel-
related expenses for use of personal vehicle, car rental, taxi, shuttle, bus fares, 
lodging, toll fees and parking charges. Only District business related telephone 
calls, e-mails and faxes are eligible for reimbursement. Only one personal phone 
call, not to exceed 10 minutes total, to home, a family member or friend on the 
first day of travel shall be reimbursed. The costs of personal or business 
expenses unrelated to District business will not be reimbursed. 


 


• Non-reimbursable travel expenses (See Exhibit A). 
 


• Non-local travel is any travel that is outside Salem with a duration of less than 
twelve (12) hours and an overnight stay is not required. Reimbursement is 
allowed only for mileage and parking. 
 


• Director out-of-state travel expenses are limited to those incurred not more than 
one day before, during the meeting, training or conference, and one day after 
unless a longer stay before or after results in lower airfare (i.e. Saturday night 
stay-over) and the additional hotel and meal expenses do not exceed the savings 
differential. 
 


• The Director shall be responsible to pay for the replacement cost of lost or stolen 
airline tickets if it should ever occur, since most tickets are now done 
electronically and are paperless. 
 


• Conference and registration fees will be paid from District funds directly to the 
conference/training provider. No out-of-pocket expenses for conference 
registration fees need to be incurred by any Director, unless, last minute 
registration precludes prepayment. 
 


• Hotel accommodations shall be covered up to the single room rate. 
 


• Upon return, District Directors should promptly submit a properly completed 
Travel Expense Form with original receipts for reimbursement within 30 days 
following the meeting, training or conference. If a District Director fails to submit 
their Travel Expense Form within 30 days they shall not be reimbursed for those 
expenses unless the situation was beyond the control of the Director, or an 
incident occurred not caused by the Director. Using a personal credit card is 
acceptable as long as actual receipts, other than credit card statements, are 
submitted for reimbursement. In unusual circumstances or if original receipts are 
not available, copies of receipts will be accepted. 
 







• Meal costs shall only be reimbursed using Oregon's current state per diem rates 
therefore, it is not necessary to keep original receipts for meals. 
 


• Charges for air transportation must be supported by the passenger coupon 
portion of the ticket, or passenger receipt and itinerary when the passenger 
coupon is not available. 


 


• Hotel charges must be supported by an itemized bill with evidence of payment. 
 


• Directors must be able to provide proof of attendance at all meetings or 
proceedings they are authorized to attend, if requested by the District's Board of 
Directors. Proof of attendance can include: a copy of certificate of attendance, 
copy of agenda and/or other relevant material. 


 
Upon return and prior to being reimbursed for approved travel expenses, all Directors 
who attend business meetings, conferences and/or training sessions shall fill out a 
Director Travel Report Form, then make a verbal or written report to the Board of 
Directors at their next District board meeting and contribute any informational and 
training materials to the District's resource library.  
 
Should a Director fail to fill out the District's Director Travel Report Form and make a 
verbal or 'written report to the District Board Members, the Director shall not be 
reimbursed for any travel expenses until both of these requirements have been met. 
Failure to meet these requirements may also affect a Director receiving future approval 
to travel on District business for meetings, training and conferences or be reimbursed 
for any future travel expenses. 
 
The District may disallow reimbursement claims if the Director does not: (a) provide an 
itemization of approved expenses; (b) provide any receipts or other documentation to 
support reimbursement and/or receipts or supporting documents appear to be 
misrepresented or falsified; (c) provide justification for an unauthorized expense. 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its regularly 
meeting on November 2, 2005 
 
Adopted and Approved: November 2, 2005  
Douglas Krahmer, Chair 
 
The revised policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on January 8, 2020 
 
Revised and Approved: January 8, 2020  
Terry Hsu, Chair 
 
 







Amendment  #2006-06-07 
Policy In lieu of actual and necessary expenses 
 
Policy for reimbursement of the Marion Soil & Water Conservation District elected 
directors and associate directors in lieu of actual and necessary expenses incurred in 
connection with the performance of their duties for attendance at monthly board and/or 
special meetings or committee meetings within the district 
 


Purpose 
 
The purpose of the policy is to provide uniform, pre-approved conditions for 
compensation of expenses incurred by elected directors and associate directors in the 
performance of official duties when attending monthly board and/or special meetings or 
committee meetings within the District. Each elected director and associate director may 
voluntarily choose to receive or not to receive the per diem amount. 
 


Scope 
 
All elected directors and associate directors of the District may be reimbursed for actual 
and necessary expenses incurred in connection with the performance of their official 
duties for the District (see Directors Travel Policy and Procedures) providing, however, 
that in lieu of such reimbursement for attendance at monthly and/or special meetings or 
committee meetings, each elected director or associate director of the District may 
voluntarily choose to receive a per diem of twenty five dollars ($25.00) for attending a 
minimum of two (2) or more such meetings in any one calendar month. 
 


A. "Monthly board or special meetings" include attendance by an elected director or 
associate director at a publicly noticed meeting of the District. 
 


B. "Committee meetings" include attendance by a elected director or associate 
director at a publicly noticed meeting of an authorized standing committee of the 
District, a special committee established by action of the District or by the Chair 
of the District. It also includes attendance at any public hearing sponsored by the 
District when the Chair has appointed a special committee to conduct or 
supervise the hearing and the elected director or associate director is a duly 
appointed member of that committee. 
 


C. The in-lieu reimbursement for attendance at monthly and/or special meetings or 
committee meetings shall only apply to a minimum of two or more such meetings 
in any one calendar month. 


 







Authority 
 
A member of a governing body of a district may receive an amount not to exceed $50 
for each day or portion thereof as compensation for services performed as a member of 
the governing body. Such compensation shall not be deemed lucrative. The governing 
body may provide for reimbursement of a member for actual and reasonable traveling 
and other expenses incurred by a member in performing official duties as provided for in 
ORS 198.190-Compensation and expenses of members of certain boards. 


Responsibilities 
 


A. District's Business Manager 
 


1. Responsible for developing and including in the District's annual operating 
budget requirements for funds to support reimbursements to directors and 
associate directors of the District as authorized for attendance at monthly 
board and/or special meetings and committee meetings in addition to in and 
out-of-state traveling expenses. 
 


2. Responsible for administrative processing and payment of claims for 
reimbursement submitted by directors and associate directors of the District in 
conformance with this policy. 


 


B.  Elected Directors and Associate Directors 
 


1. Elected directors and associate directors of the District shall travel in a 
manner which will be most advantageous to the District, consistent with 
performing their official duties for the District. 


Schedule for Reimbursement 
 


A.  Attendance at board and/or special meetings or committee meetings within the  
District: 


 
1. Per Diem: $25.00 per month for attending two or more monthly board and/or 


special meetings or committee meetings. 
 


2. Elected directors and associate directors of the District, who voluntarily 
choose to be reimbursed, shall submit claims on a District Travel Expense 
Reimbursement Form for per diem travel within the District and shall submit 
the form on a biannual basis (January and July of each calendar year) to the 
District's Business Manager for administrative processing and payment. 


 







B. Travel within the District for purposes other than attending monthly board and/or 
special board meetings or committee meetings and as authorized by the District 
Board of Directors or the Chair of the District: 


 
1. Per Diem: None authorized. 


 
2. Travel: 


 
a. Privately-owned vehicle - mileage shall be reimbursed at the current state 


rate established; parking fees are also reimbursable. 
 


b. Meals: Current state per diem rates shall apply. 
 


3. Lodging: Reasonable costs are eligible for reimbursement when authorized by 
the District Board of Directors or District Chair. 


 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its regularly 
scheduled meeting on June 7, 2006. 
 
Adopted  June 7, 2006 
Douglas Krahmer, Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 








#2020-01-08 
EXHIBIT A 
 


 
Non-Reimbursable Expenses for Travel 
 


• Alcoholic beverages 
• Airline club membership dues 
• Earphone usage 
• Annual fees for credit cards 
• Auto repairs 
• Baby sitting 
• Barbers and/or hairdressers 
• Clothing/Toiletry items 
• Country club dues and/or fees 
• Delinquency fees and/or finance fee charges (unless error of the fund) 
• Frequent flyer membership fees 
• Golf fees 
• Helicopter service for airport transfers 
• Laundry service for travel fewer than 5 days 
• Limousine service (except livery services for a group in a large metro area) 
• Loss or theft of cash advance or airline tickets 
• Loss of theft of personal funds and/or property 
• Lost baggage 
• Luggage or briefcases 
• Magazines, books and/or newspapers 
• Mini-bar 
• Movies (in-flight or hotel) 
• No-show charges for hotel or car service 
• Optional travel and/or baggage insurance 
• Parking tickets or traffic violations 
• Pet care 
• Personal telegrams 
• Personal entertainment including sporting events 
• Saunas or massages 
• Shoeshines 
• Souvenirs and/or personal gifts 
• Workout or gym fees 


 



https://www.marionswcd.net/






#2020-01-08  
Exhibit B Travel Procedure 
 


 
Before Departure 
 
District Directors should, as far in advance as possible: 
 


• Submit his or her request to travel and an estimate of costs to attend a 
conference, training or meeting to the Board of Directors for their approval at a 
regular board meeting. 


 
• Obtain a Travel Authorization Form from the Business Manager prior to 


purchasing tickets when feasible. 
 


• Comply with all established District procedures regarding travel authorization. 
 
During the Trip 
 
District Directors should: 
 


• Charge all possible business-related expenses to their personal credit card when 
feasible. 


 
• Save all (original) receipts for reimbursement. 


 
Upon Return 
 
District Directors should: 
 


• Promptly fill out a Travel Expense Form, include original receipts and submit to 
Business Manager within 30 days of returning from business trip. 


 
• Fill out a Director Travel Report Form and submit to the Business Manager. 


 
• Make a verbal or written report to the Board of Directors at their next regular 


District meeting and contribute any informational and training materials to the 
District's resource library. 


 
• Pay off personal credit card with the reimbursement received from the District. 


 



https://www.marionswcd.net/






USDA Conservation Plan Review Procedures 
 
The Marion Soil and Water Conservation District {SWCD} shall use the following 
procedures to review and approve conservation plans for USDA Programs including but 
not limited to: 
 
• Conservation Reserve Program (CRP) General and Continuous 
• Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP) 
• Environmental Quality Incentive Program (EQIP) 
• Grassland Reserve Program (GRP) 
• Wetland Reserve Program (WRP) 
• Wildlife Habitat Incentives Program (WHIP) 
 
The Marion SWCD and NRCS Staff shall follow the procedures listed below when 
preparing to mail conservation plan information for review by the elected board 
members prior to any board meeting. 
 
1.  Give general background information and list the practices and activities that the 
     plan covers. 
 
2.  Prepare and include a conservation plan map showing area or location of property. 
 
3.  List what information the landowner or individual has given permission to release. 
 


a) If information is limited, then state that further discussion of their plan beyond 
permitted information shall require an executive session 


 
b) Or state that permission has been given that any information may be discussed 


in open session. 
 
4.  Clearly state funding status by: 
 


a) No funding being requested at this time. 
 


b) There is a potential for future funding. 
 


c) There is a request for funds and list what program or financial source being 
sought. 


 
5.  When preparing the information for mailing, assemble together all the plans that  
     require an executive session and then assemble together those plans that can be 
     discussed in open session. This is to help avoid any confusion about what plans can 
     or cannot be discussed in open session. 
 
6.  For quick reference, list on a separate piece of paper and preferably in alphabetical 
     order, all the conservation plans with each planner's name and phone number  







     alongside it. 
 
7.  When mailing plan information, it shall be placed in a separate envelope and    
     marked confidential. 
 
8.  No conservation plans, unless requested during an executive session, shall be  
     brought into the meeting room. The staff shall have available only the signature page  
     for signing once a plan has been approved. 
 
9.  Prior to the board meeting staff shall compile a list of all conservation plans to be  
     approved during the meeting. Staff shall then separate out those plans with  
     limited permission that would require an executive session from those that can be 
     freely discussed in an open meeting. This list will be distributed during the board 
     meeting and shall only contain the information that the landowner or individual has  
     granted permission to release and nothing else. 
 
The Marion SWCD Board Members shall follow the procedures listed below when 
reviewing conservation plan information prior to any board meeting. 
 
1.  Each board member shall review each plan prior to the board meeting and call the  
     person who wrote the plan if there are questions or for further clarification. 
 
2.  After reviewing a plan's information, each board member shall come to the board  
     meeting prepared to make a decision to either approve or not approve a plan. 
 
3.  Board members are not to discuss with others any information about an individual's  
     conservation plan unless they have written permission from the individual. 
 
4.  Board members shall not bring into the meeting room any plan information that was  
     mailed to them prior to the meeting. If necessary, board members may bring their   
     own notes to use as a reference when making a decision on a particular plan. 
 
5. These procedures can be amended at any time at a regularly sanctioned District  
    meeting. 
 
The Marion SWCD Board Chair shall follow the procedures listed below during a board 
meeting. 
 
1.  The chair and all the board members shall be given a list of all conservation plans  
     that need to be approved during the meeting. The list shall have the plans separated  
     by the ones with limited permission that would require an executive session from  
     those that can be freely discussed in an open meeting. 
 
 2.  The chair shall ask the board members if there is a need to call an executive  
     session for the purpose of discussing any of the plans from the list of those that have  
     only granted a limited release of information. 







 
3.  Should there be a request for an executive session then the chair shall call one in  
     accordance with ORS 192.660 (1) (f) "To consider records that are exempt by law  
     from public inspection."* The chair will state the start and ending time of the   
     executive session and announce only those persons who will be allowed to remain  
     during the executive session. All others will be excused from the room until the open  
     session resumes. 
 
4.  The chair shall resume the open session at the appropriate time and ask those that  
     have stepped out of the room to return. 
 
5.  Should there be no request for an executive session to discuss any of the plans,  
     then the chair shall go down the list and ask for board motions to approve the said  
     conservation plans according to the what information can be released. 
 
These procedures were adopted unanimously by the Board of Directors at its regularly 
scheduled meeting on January 20, 2004. 
 
Adopted: January 20, 2004 
Approved: January 20, 2004 
 
Ralph Fisher, Chair 
 
 
*ORS 192.345 (33) (a) Public records conditionally exempt from disclosure: (33) The following voluntary 
conservation agreements and reports: (a) Land management plans required for voluntary stewardship 
agreements entered into under ORS 541.973 (Stewardship agreements) 


 



https://oregon.public.law/statutes/ors_192.660

https://oregon.public.law/statutes/ors_192.345

https://oregon.public.law/statutes/ors_541.973






 
BALLOT MEASURE:  Permanent Rate Limit - Marion SWCD General Election 
November 7, 2000  
 
The Marion Soil and Water Conservation District (District) is asking voters within the 
District for a new permanent rate limit of .05 cents per $1000 assessed value. The 
$590,000 annual income from this permanent rate limit would enable the District to 
provide soil and water conservation technical assistance to urban and rural residents of 
the District, and to  cities, special districts, and watershed councils in the District.  
Since the Dust Bowl days of the 1930s, farmers in the District have been able to get 
help on soil erosion and water conservation problems from the federally funded Natural 
Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). The District provided administrative services 
to the local NRCS staff. The Federal government has reduced staff to the point the 
present staff has no time for landowners not in a federal program. The District has 
attempted to fill the void with employees funded by the state and county.  
 
In the past two years requests to the District for technical assistance have multiplied. 
Feeling the pressure exerted by the Federal Clean Water Act and the Endangered 
Species Act, not only farmers, but cities, special districts and watershed councils are all 
requesting technical assistance from. the District. Unfortunately, these requests come at 
a time when funding is limited from existing sources. Grants are available only for 
projects, not for ongoing technical assistance. County budget, affected by property tax 
limitations, are strained to provide financing for the District. Funding from State of 
Oregon has been cut almost 30% over the last two years. As a consequence, the 
District finds itself with funding for only 2 1/2 employees to provide the technical 
assistance once provided by 21 federal employees.  
 
To deal with its lack of stable funding, the District has decided to proceed with the 
development of its own permanent rate limit. If voters approve the permanent rate limit, 
the District will hire additional employees to provide soil and water conservation 
technical assistance for the Oregon Plan, Senate Bill 1010 Plan, Endangered Species 
Act, Watershed Health, and Water Quality Monitoring expertise, as well as, 
administrative and coordination of support services.  
 
The Marion Soil and Water Conservation District Board stress their commitment to offer 
technical assistance to all residents of the district. Pollution cleanup by urban and rural 
residents will be required by the Clean Water Act and the Endangered Species Act. 
Most cities and special districts do not have the expertise to deal with soil and water 
conservation matters such as identifying soil types, controlling soil erosion, managing 
fertilizers, pesticides, designing efficient irrigation systems, designing vegetative strips 
to catch pollutants before they reach streams, and designing vegetation restoration 
along streams and flood plains. These are the services the District could provide to all 
its residents. 
 








Attachment A  


Resolution 2021-11-03 


 


Public Contracting Policy 


 


Adopted March 2, 2005 


Amended February 20, 2014 


Amended November 3, 2021 by 2021-11-03 


 


INTRODUCTION: USING THESE RULES. 


Under Oregon’s public contracting laws, public contracts fall into one of three 


categories. To use these Rules effectively, first determine which type of contract is being 


awarded and refer to the appropriate section below. 


▪ Personal Services (professional services) [Section 2] 


▪ Procurements (purchase of goods, or services that are not personal services) [Section 


3]; and 


▪ Public improvements (construction) [Section 4]. 


For other contracting procedures, see the following: 


▪ Delegation (approval and spending authority) [Section 1] 


▪ Emergency contracts [Section 5] 


▪ Disposal of surplus property [Section 6] 


▪ Hearings on disqualification or debarment decisions [Section 7] 


▪ Purchases through federal programs or federal catalogues [Section 8] 


Some rules refer you to other authorities for more information or additional procedures, 


which should be consulted before entering in the contracting process: 


▪ “ORS” means “Oregon Revised Statutes” 


▪ “OAR” means “Oregon Administrative Rules” 


 


SECTION 1. DELEGATION. 


1.1 Local Contract Review Board (“LCRB”). Except as otherwise provided in these 


Rules, the powers and duties of the Local Contract Review Board (“LCRB”) under the 


Public Contracting Code must be exercised and performed by the Board of Directors. 



https://www.marionswcd.net/





1.2 Contracting Authority. The District Manager or designee of the Board of Directors 


shall have the authority to approve any public contract consistent with the current 


Delegation of Authority policy. The District’s Board of Directors shall approve any 


contract exceeding this amount. 


 


SECTION 2. PERSONAL SERVICES. 


2.1 Definition. “Personal Services” include those services that require specialized 


technical, creative, professional or communication skills or talents, unique and 


specialized knowledge, or the exercise of discretionary judgment, and for which the 


quality of the service depends on attributes that are unique to the service provider. Such 


services include, but are not limited to: Architect, engineer; surveyor; photogrammetrist; 


attorney; accountant; auditor; computer programmer; artist; designer; performer; 


consultant; outreach educator, and workshop facilitator. 


2.2 Personal Services Other than Architectural, Engineering, Surveying, and 


Photogrammetry Services and Related Services. 


A. A personal services contract totaling less than $10,000 in either a calendar year or a 


fiscal year may be awarded by direct appointment, without competitive bidding. 


B. A personal services contract totaling between $10,000 and $150,000 in the 


aggregate may be awarded after obtaining at least three informal quotes, according to 


the procedures for Intermediate Procurement described in ORS 279B.070. 


C. A personal services contract totaling more than $150,000 in the aggregate shall be 


awarded using competitive sealed proposals as provided in ORS 279B.060, unless 


exempted from competitive bidding by resolution of the Local Contract Review Board 


according to the requirements of ORS 279B.085. 


D. Personal service contracts exempted from competitive proposal processes may be 


awarded in any manner authorized by the LCRB. 


E. The above procedures do not apply to contracts with architects, engineers, land 


surveyors, or photogrammetrists. 


2.3 Architects, Engineers, Land Surveyors, and Photogrammetrists. 


A. A contract for architectural, engineering, surveying, and photogrammetry services 


may be entered into by direct appointment if the cost of such services for the project will 


not exceed $100,000; or in an emergency; or if the project described in the contract 


consists of work that has been substantially described, planned or otherwise previously 


studied or rendered in an earlier contract with the consultant that was awarded under 


these Rules, and the new contract is a continuation of that project. 







B. Unless otherwise provided in this subsection, contracts for architectural, engineering, 


surveying and photogrammetry services shall be awarded according to the procedures 


for competitive proposals described in ORS 279B.060 and these rules. 


C. All contracts for architectural, engineering, surveying and related service shall be 


entered into consistent with ORS 279C.110, which substantially provides as follows: 


1) The District shall select consultants to provide architectural, engineering, 


photogrammetric mapping, transportation planning or land surveying services on the 


basis of the consultant’s qualifications for the type of professional service required. 


2) The District may solicit or use pricing policies and proposals or other pricing 


information, including the number of hours proposed for the service required, expenses, 


hourly rates and overhead, to determine consultant compensation only after selecting a 


candidate pursuant to the procedures that the District creates to screen and select 


consultants and to select a candidate. 


3) The District’s screening and selection procedures under this section, regardless of 


the estimated cost of the services for a project, may include considering each 


candidate’s: 


(a) Specialized experience, capabilities and technical competence, which the candidate 


may demonstrate with the candidate’s proposed approach and methodology to meet the 


project requirements; 


(b) Resources committed to perform the work and the proportion of the time that the 


candidate’s staff would spend on the project, including time for specialized services, 


within the applicable time limits; 


(c) Record of past performance, including but not limited to price and cost data from 


previous projects, quality of work, ability to meet schedules, cost control and contract 


administration; 


(d) Ownership status and employment practices regarding minority, women and 


emerging small businesses or historically underutilized businesses; 


(e) Availability to the project locale; 


(f) Familiarity with the project locale; and 


(g) Proposed project management techniques. 


D. If, after following screening and selection procedures, the District determines that two 


or more candidates are equally qualified, the District may select a candidate through 


any process that is not based on the candidate’s pricing policies, proposals or other 


pricing information. 


 


SECTION 3. PROCUREMENTS (GOODS AND NON-PERSONAL SERVICES) 







3.1 Small Procurements (Under $10,000). 


A. Procurements of goods and non-personal services under $10,000 are not subject to 


competitive bidding requirements. The board or designee shall make a reasonable effort 


to obtain competitive quotes in order to ensure the best value for the District. 


B. The District may amend a public contract awarded as a small procurement beyond 


the limits in this subsection in accordance with OAR 137-047-0800, provided the 


cumulative amendments do not increase the total contract price to a sum that is greater 


than twenty-five percent (25%) of the original contract price. 


3.2 Intermediate Procurements ($10,000 to $150,000). 


A. A contract for procurement of goods, or services that are not personal services, 


estimated to cost between $10,000 and $150,000 in a calendar year may be awarded 


according to the processes for intermediate procurements described in ORS 279B.070. 


B. The District, through its authorized representative, may negotiate with a prospective 


contractor who responds to a request for an Intermediate Procurement to clarify the 


quote or offer, or to make modifications that will make the quote or offer more 


advantageous to the District. [OAR 137-047-0270(2)] 


C. The District may award a contract for an Intermediate Procurement to the offeror 


whose quote or proposal will best serve the interests of the District, taking into account 


price as well as considerations including, but not limited to, experience, expertise, 


product functionality, suitability for a particular purpose and contractor responsibility 


under ORS 279B.110. 


D. The District may amend a contract awarded as an Intermediate Procurement in 


accordance with OAR 137-047-0800, provided the cumulative amendments do not 


increase the total contract price beyond one-hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the 


original contract price. [OAR 137-047-0270(3)] 


3.3 Formal Procurements. 


A. Contracts for goods and non-personal services of $150,000 or more must 


competitively bid as provided in ORS 279B.055 (Competitive Sealed Bids) or 279B.060 


(Competitive Sealed Proposals). 


B. In making an award using the Request for Proposal process in ORS 279B.060, the 


District may use any evaluation method determined to be most appropriate for the 


selection process, including, but not limited to, the processes described in ORS 


279B.060(6)(b), as well as direct appointment of personal services contracts if direct 


appointment is determined to be most advantageous to the District. The evaluation 


process(es) to be used shall be stated in the Request for Proposals. OAR 137-047-


0261 through 137-047-0263 shall apply to evaluation of proposals. 







C. Nothing in this subsection shall prohibit the use of the Formal Procurement process 


for any contract under $150,000. 


3.4 Special Procurements (Exemptions from Bidding; Sole-Source Contracts). 


A. The LCRB may exempt from competitive bidding certain contracts or classes of 


contracts for procurement of goods and services according to the procedures described 


in ORS 279B.085. 


B. Subject to the authorities and limitations in “SECTION 1: DELEGATION,” and 


according to the procedures described in subparagraph 3.4.A of these Rules, the 


District may award a contract for goods, or for services that are not personal services, 


without competition after determining in writing that the goods or services, or class of 


goods or services, are available from only one source. The sole-source determination 


must be based on written findings that may include: 


1) That the efficient utilization of existing goods requires acquiring compatible goods or 


services; 


2) That the goods or services required to exchange software or data with other public or 


private agencies are available from only one source; 


3) That the goods or services are for use in a pilot or an experimental project; or 


4) Other findings that support the conclusion that the goods or services are available 


from only one source. 


To the extent reasonably practical, the District shall negotiate with the sole source to 


obtain contract terms that are advantageous to the District. 


SECTION 4: PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS (CONSTRUCTION). 


4.1 Definition. “Public improvement” means a project for construction, reconstruction or 


major renovation on real property by the District. “Public improvement” does not include: 


A. Projects for which no District funds are directly or indirectly used, except for 


participation that is incidental or related primarily to project design or inspection; or 


B. Emergency work, minor alteration, ordinary repair or maintenance necessary to 


preserve a public improvement. For these types of projects, see SECTION 3: 


PROCUREMENTS, or, if applicable, SECTION 5: EMERGENCY CONTRACTS. 


4.2 Small Contracts (under $5,000). Public improvement contracts under $5,000 are 


exempt from competitive bidding and may be directly awarded to any qualified 


contractor. 


4.3 Intermediate Contracts ($5,000 to $100,000). 







A. Public improvements contracts between $5,000 and $100,000 may be awarded by 


submitting written specifications and a request for an informal bid to at least three 


qualified bidders. 


B. The procedures for competitive quotes described in ORS 279C.412 and 279C.414 


shall apply to contracts awarded under this subsection. 


C. Notwithstanding the informal bid process described in this subsection, if the contract 


is estimated to cost $50,000 or more, prevailing wage requirements (ORS 279C.800 to 


ORS 279C.845) will apply. 


4.4 Large Contracts (greater than $100,000). 


A. Any public improvement contract expected to exceed $100,000 must be awarded 


using applicable formal competitive bidding procedures described in ORS chapter 279C 


and OAR chapter 137, Division 49. 


B. For any public improvement contract estimated to cost $50,000 or more, prevailing 


wage requirements (ORS 279C.800 to ORS 279C.845) will apply. 


C. Nothing in these Rules shall prohibit the District from using the process described in 


this subsection for contracts under $100,000. 


4.4 Exemptions from Bidding. 


A. The LCRB may exempt certain contracts or classes of contracts for public 


improvements from competitive bidding according to the procedures described in ORS 


279C.335. 


B. When exempting a public improvement from competitive bidding, the LCRB may 


authorize the contract to be awarded using a Request for Proposal process for public 


improvements, according to the processes described in OAR 137-049-0640 through 


137-049-0690. 


SECTION 5: EMERGENCY CONTRACTS. 


5.1 Definition. “Emergency” shall be defined as follows: “Circumstances that (a) could 


not have reasonably been foreseen; (b) create a substantial risk of loss, damage, or 


interruption of services or a substantial threat to property, public health, welfare or 


safety; and (c) require prompt execution of a contract to remedy the condition.” 


5.2 Authority. The Board Chair, the District Manager, or a designee of the Board of 


Directors shall have authority to determine when emergency conditions exist sufficient 


to warrant an emergency contract and shall so declare in writing. The nature of the 


emergency and the method used for the selection of the contractor shall be 


documented. 


5.3 Process. Emergency contracts may be awarded as follows: 







A. Goods and Services. Emergency contracts for any contract that is not a public 


improvement contract may be awarded pursuant to ORS 279B.080. 


B. Public Improvements. OAR 137-049-0150 shall be the contracting rules for awarding 


a public improvement contract under emergency conditions. 


SECTION 6: DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY. 


6.1 Definition. “Surplus Property” is defined as any personal property of the District that 


has been determined by the District Manager or designee as being of no use or value to 


the District. 


6.2 Disposal. Surplus property shall be disposed of as follows: 


A. For Surplus Property with an estimated resale value of less than $1,000, the District 


Manager or designee may dispose of the property in the way deemed most 


advantageous to the District or the community at large. 


B. For Surplus Property with an estimated resale value of $1,000 or more, the District 


Manager shall submit a request to the Board of Directors for a declaration that certain 


property is of no further use or value to the District. 


C. If the Board of Directors declares such property “surplus” it shall authorize the District 


Manager to dispose of the property in one of the following ways: 


▪ Public Auction. Auctions must be sufficiently advertised in the manner that is most 


likely to obtain a competitive bidding pool for the property. Employees of the District may 


purchase surplus property from the District only at an advertised auction, and only if the 


employee submits the highest bid for the property. 


▪ Donation or Cooperative Agreement. Surplus property may be donated, sold, or 


disposed of by agreement to any nonprofit organization, any other localgovernment, or 


any state or federal program created to dispose of surplus property. 


▪ Disposal. Surplus property determined to be of insufficient value or otherwise 


impractical to auction or donate may be disposed of in any appropriate manner. 


D. The Board of Directors may require the District Manager to obtain an appraisal of the 


property prior to disposition. 


SECTION 7. APPEALS OF PREQUALIFICATION AND DEBARMENT DECISIONS. 


7.1 Review of the District’s prequalification and debarment decisions shall be as set 


forth in ORS 279B.425. The following additional procedures shall apply to hearings on 


such decisions by the LCRB: 


A. Notices shall be submitted in writing to the District Manager. Appeals filed after the 


filing period stated in ORS 279B.425 shall not be heard. 







B. Upon opening of the hearing, District staff shall explain the District’s decision being 


appealed and the justification thereof. The appellant shall then be heard. Time for the 


appellant’s testimony shall be established by the Board Chair. The appellant may submit 


any testimony or evidence relevant to the decision or the appeal. Any part requesting 


time to testify in support of the appeal shall then be heard, subject to time limits 


established by the Board Chair. 


C. Once all testimony and evidence in support of the appeal is heard, any party 


requesting time to testify in support of the District’s decision shall be provided time to be 


heard, with time limits established by the Board Chair. Any party testifying in opposition 


to the appeal may submit any testimony or evidence relevant to the decision or the 


appeal. Once all testimony in opposition to the appeal has been heard, the appellant 


may request time to provide rebuttal testimony. At the conclusion of the rebuttal 


testimony, if any, the Board Chair shall close the hearing. 


D. When issued in writing according to the requirements of ORS 279B.425, the LCRB’s 


decision and order shall be final. 


SECTION 8. PURCHASES FROM FEDERAL CATALOGUES. 


8.1 Subject to applicable Board approval requirements stated in these Rules, the District 


may purchase goods from federal catalogues without competitive bidding when the 


procurement is pursuant to 10 USC 381, the Electronic Government Act of 2002 (Public 


Law 107-347). Purchases under other federal laws will be permitted upon a finding by 


the Local Contract Review Board that the law is similar to such Act in effectuating or 


promoting transfers of property to contracting agencies. 








 


 


8.  2023 District  Structure – A 







 


 


 








Salary Administration Plan 
2002-09-04A  Exhibit A  
 


Salary Structure: 
 
Monthly  Step 1  Step 2  Step 3  Step4   Step 5  Step 6 
 
*Range 1  1700   1800   1900   2000   2100   2200 
(20,400-26,400K) 
 
*Range 2  2200   2300   2400   2500   2600   2700 
(26,400-32,400K) 
 
*Range 3  2700  2800   2900   3000   3100   3200 
(32,400-38,400K) 
 
*Range 4  3200   3300   3400   3500   3600   3700 
(38,400-44,400K) 
 
*Range 5  3700  3800   3900   4000   4100   4200 
(44,400-50,400K) 
 
*Range 6  4200  4300   4400   4500   4600   4700  
(50,400-56,400K) 
 
*Range 7  4700   4800   4900   5000   5100   5200 
(56,400-62,400K) 
 
*Reflects the second cost of living increase of $100 per step effective July 1, 2004. First 
cost of living increase of $100 per step took effect July 1, 2003. 
 
All positions are paid on a monthly salary basis, including those hired on a "limited 
duration" or grant-funded basis, unless otherwise designated in writing at the time of 
hire. 
 
Designated part-time employees (normally working less than 40 hours per week) are 
paid on an hourly basis, based on their position's assigned monthly salary. Full-time 
employees who have unpaid leave during a month shall have their monthly pay 
adjusted for the unpaid time on an hourly basis, based on their assigned monthly salary. 
 
Temporary, summer or other special-hire employees are paid on an hourly basis set at 
their time of hire and are not subject to these provisions. Consultants are not considered 
employees and are paid on a contract or fee-for-service basis. 
 
Position Classification & Allocation: 
 



https://www.marionswcd.net/





The following positions and classifications are established and assigned to salary 
ranges as indicated. Although not a part of the Plan, current salaries & approximate 
federal GS levels of indicated salary ranges are listed in parenthesis for reference. 
 
Administrative Coordinator .................Range 3/4 
Administrative Assistant .....................Range 1/2 
District Manager. ............................... Range 6/7 
Fiscal Assistant (not yet filled) ............Range 1/2 
Special Projects Coordinator. .............Range 2/3 
Watershed Council Coordinator. .........Range 2/3/4 
Watershed Technical Specialist. .........Range 3/4/5 
 
Positions are assigned to multiple salary ranges to provide additional incentive and 
advancement in recognition of professional performance, experience, skill and 
education. After reaching at least Step 5 of a lower salary range in their series, an 
employee may be promoted, upon recommendation of the District Manager and with 
approval by the Board, to the next higher-paying step in the next range of their series. 
 
Overtime Designation: 
 
District positions are assigned to the following overtime designations. The Fiscal 
Assistant, Administrative Assistant and Special Projects Coordinator positions are 
designated "eligible" and receive time-and-a-half paid or comp time for overtime hours 
worked. The Administrative Coordinator, Watershed Technical Specialist and 
Watershed Council Coordinator positions are designated "administrative or 
professional' and receive hour-for-hour comp time for overtime hours worked. The 
District Manager position is designated "exempt" and is not eligible for overtime 
regardless of the number of hours worked. 
 
District positions established in the future with different classifications shall be 
assigned to an overtime designation when they are authorized, and this Plan updated 
accordingly. 
 
Initial Salary Upon Hire: 
 
Normally, the successful applicant for a position will be hired at Step 1 or 2 of the 
applicable initial salary range. If the applicant has substantial functional, subject 
matter and/or conservation district experience, they may be hired at Step 3 or 4 of the 
initial range. Remaining steps and ranges should be left to provide incentive and 
advancement based on future meritorious performance. 
 
Note: In the case of Watershed Coordinators. the initial salary shall be based on the 
Council's recommendation per OWEB guidelines unless a particular Council’s 
recommendation will create substantial inequity with other District coordinators or 
staff. In such a case. the District will confer with the Council in an attempt to minimize 
the inequity. Further. additional fund-raising by a Council Coordinator may be 







considered in performance evaluation and. within these provisions. applied toward 
additional coordinator salary in cases where salary inequity. comparability and/or 
performance clearly warrant. 
 
Exceptions to this policy must   approved by the Administrative Committee before the 
hiring process is completed. An exception for the District Manager position must 
be approved by the Board. The basis for any exception granted must be documented 
in writing to reduce the risk of future complaints or liability. 
 
Salary Increases: 
 
Salaries can be increased in two ways. 
 
1. Cost-of-Living increases approved by the Board for all or most salary ranges, 
which would increase the step amounts in the salary ranges. The Board 
normally considers possible cost-of-living increases during or just prior to the 
annual budget development process so that increases, if any, can be included 
in the next fiscal year's budget. Thus, any cost-of-living increase normally 
would take effect on July 1, the beginning of the new budget period. 
 
2. Merit increases approved by the Board for individual employees, which move 
an employee to a higher step in their current salary range or promote the 
employee to the next higher applicable salary range. Merit increases normally 
are considered at the time of an employee's trial service review and at 
performance reviews conducted annually thereafter.  Such increases should reflect 
achievement of the employee's performance goals along with demonstrated high quality 
of work, initiative and contributions to the District's programs and operations. Merit 
increases also may be considered at other times as special recognition of an 
employee's outstanding record of performance and contributions at the highest level. 
 
The District Manager may recommend cost-of-living adjustments and individual merit 
increases, or the Board may initiate them on its own. However, salary increases also 
must be considered in the context of the District's position as a public entity, along 
with its revenue, budget and other operational limitations. Thus, salary increases are 
not "automatic" and may not necessarily occur on a regular basis (such as annually). 
 
Implementation: 
 
The provisions of this Plan are effective September 1, 2002 with the following 
exceptions. 
 
1. Current salaries of all employees hired prior to adoption of the Plan, except the 
District Manager, shall remain in effect until they next receive an individual 
merit increase or March 1, 2003 - whichever is earlier. At that time, their salary 
shall be adjusted to the next higher step of this Plan or the following step, 
depending on their current salary and recommendation of the District Manager 







and approval by the Board. 
 
2. The Administrative Committee shall recommend to the Board any adjustment of 
the District Manager's current salary in connection with implementation of this 
Plan. 
 
Salaries of employees hired after adoption of this Plan shall be consistent with the 
Plan's provisions. 
 
This policy was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors at its regularly 
scheduled meeting on September 4, 2002. 
 
Daniel Goffin 
Chair 
 








 








Harassment and Retaliation 
2020-01-08 


 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY ................................................................................................. 1 


RETALIATION ........................................................................................................................................... 2 


SEXUAL HARASSMENT .......................................................................................................................... 2 


HARASSMENT ......................................................................................................................................... 2 


REPORTING AN INCIDENT OF HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION OR RETALIATION ....................... 3 


INTERNAL COMPLAINT PROCEDURE .................................................................................................. 3 


EXTERNAL COMPLAINT PROCEDURES ............................................................................................... 4 


EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS ............................................................................................................... 4 


ADDITIONAL EMPLOYEE SUPPORT SERVICES .................................................................................. 4 


 


Marion Soil and Water Conservation District is committed to a work environment in 
which all individuals are treated with respect and dignity. Each individual has the right to 
work in a professional atmosphere that promotes equal employment opportunities and 
prohibits unlawful discriminatory practices, including harassment. Therefore, Marion Soil 
and Water Conservation District expects that all relationships among persons will be 
respectful and professional, free of bias, prejudice and harassment in the workplace, at 
work related event, or any activity coordinated by or through the organization. This 
policy applies to all employees, elected officials, board or commission members, 
volunteers, interns and any other person we interact with in the course of accomplishing 
the work of the organization. 


Marion Soil and Water Conservation District has developed this policy to ensure that all 
its employees can work in an environment free from unlawful harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation. Marion Soil and Water Conservation District will make 
every reasonable effort to ensure that all concerned are familiar with these policies and 
are aware that any complaint in violation of these policies will be investigated and 
resolved appropriately. 


Discrimination, harassment and retaliation are not acceptable. 


Any employee who has questions or concerns about these policies should talk with our 
primary contact District Manager as an alternative you may reach Board Chair. 


EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
It is our policy to ensure equal employment opportunity without discrimination or 
harassment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity 
or expression, age, disability, marital status, citizenship, national origin, genetic 
information, or any other characteristic protected by law. 


 



https://www.marionswcd.net/





RETALIATION 
We encourage reporting of all perceived incidents of discrimination or harassment. It is 
the policy of Marion Soil and Water Conservation District to promptly and thoroughly 
investigate such reports. We prohibit retaliation against any individual who reports 
discrimination or harassment or participates in an investigation of such reports. 


SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
Sexual harassment constitutes discrimination and is illegal under federal and state laws. 
For the purposes of this policy, “sexual harassment” is defined, as in the Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission Guidelines, as unwelcome sexual advances, 
requests for sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when, 
for example: a) submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term 
or condition of an individual’s employment, b) submission to or rejection of such conduct 
by an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual, 
or c) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an 
individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working 
environment. 


Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 recognizes two types of sexual harassment: a) 
quid pro quo and b) hostile work environment. Sexual harassment may include a range 
of subtle and not-so-subtle behaviors and may involve individuals of the same or 
different gender. Depending on the circumstances, these behaviors may include 
unwanted sexual advances or requests for sexual favors; sexual jokes and innuendo; 
verbal abuse of a sexual nature; commentary about an individual’s body, sexual 
prowess or sexual deficiencies; leering, whistling or touching; insulting or obscene 
comments or gestures; display in the workplace of sexually suggestive objects or 
pictures; and other physical, verbal or visual conduct of a sexual nature. 


Oregon Law provides further protection from sexual assault defined as unwanted 
conduct of a sexual nature that is inflicted upon a person or compelled through the use 
of physical force, manipulation, threat, or intimidation. 


HARASSMENT 
Harassment on the basis of any other protected characteristic is also strictly prohibited. 
Under this policy, harassment is verbal, written or physical conduct that denigrates or 
shows hostility or aversion toward an individual because of his or her race, color, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, age, 
disability, marital status, citizenship, genetic information, or any other characteristic 
protected by law, or that of his or her relatives, friends or associates, and that: a) has 
the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment, 
b) has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work 
performance, or c) otherwise adversely affects an individual’s employment 
opportunities. 


Harassing conduct includes labels, insults or negative stereotyping; threatening, 
intimidating or hostile acts; demeaning jokes; and written or graphic material that 
belittles or shows hostility or dislike toward an individual or group that is placed on walls 
or elsewhere on the employer’s premises or circulated in the workplace, on company 







time or using company equipment by e-mail, phone (including voice messages), text 
messages, social networking sites or other means. 


REPORTING AN INCIDENT OF HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION OR RETALIATION 
Marion Soil and Water Conservation District encourages reporting of all perceived 
incidents of discrimination, harassment or retaliation, regardless of the offender’s 
identity or position. Individuals who believe that they have been the victim of such 
conduct should discuss their concerns with the District Manager or Board Chair. See the 
complaint procedure described below. 


In addition, we encourage individuals who believe they are being subjected to such 
conduct to promptly advise the offender that their behavior is unwelcome and to request 
that it stop. Often this action alone will resolve the problem. We recognize, however, 
that an individual may prefer to pursue the matter through complaint procedures. 


Following receipt of a complaint or concern management will follow-up every three 
months for one year to ensure no further concerns or retaliation are experienced. 
Employees should not wait for the management follow-up to share related experiences. 
If an employee would like the follow-up to discontinue the follow-up process a request 
must be submitted in writing to the District Manager. 


INTERNAL COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 
Individuals who believe they have been the victims of conduct prohibited by this policy 
or believe they have witnessed such conduct should discuss their concerns with the 
District Manager if you are unable to reach the primary contact please reach out to the 
Board Chair. We encourage employees to document the event(s), associated date(s), 
and potential witnesses. 


Marion Soil and Water Conservation District encourages the prompt reporting of 
complaints or concerns so that quick and helpful action can be taken before 
relationships become irreparably broken. Early reporting and intervention have proven 
to be the most effective method of resolving actual or perceived incidents of 
harassment. However, complaints and concerns may be brought forward within four 
years of the alleged violation. We encourage employees to document the events, 
associated dates, and potential witnesses. 


Any reported allegations of harassment, discrimination or retaliation will be investigated 
quickly. The investigation may include individual interviews with the parties involved 
and, where necessary, with individuals who may have observed the event(s) or may 
have other relevant knowledge. 


Marion Soil and Water Conservation District will maintain confidentiality throughout the 
investigatory process to the extent possible with acceptable investigation and 
appropriate corrective action. 


Misconduct constituting harassment, discrimination or retaliation will be dealt with 
appropriately. Responsive action may include, for example, training, referral to 
counseling or corrective action such as [Identify potential options: warning, reprimand, 
withholding of a promotion or pay increase, reassignment, temporary suspension 







without pay, or termination] as Marion Soil and Water Conservation District believes 
appropriate under the circumstances. 


False and malicious complaints of harassment, discrimination or retaliation (as opposed 
to complaints that, even if erroneous, are made in good faith) may be the subject of 
appropriate disciplinary action. 


EXTERNAL COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 
We encourage employees to bring their concerns and complaints to the organization, 
and understand that, at times, this may not be the choice of the employee. Below is a 
list of the external complaint options. Please reach out to the preferred choice to 
determine the appropriate timelines for their processes. 


Oregon Bureau of Labor and Industries at the following web address: 
https://www.oregon.gov/boli/CRD/Pages/C_Crcompl.aspx 


Civil or Criminal Action. In these circumstances, a Notice of Claim must be provided to 
us in accordance with ORS 30.275. 


EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS 
No employee will be required or invited to sign an agreement requiring the non-
disclosure of information related to discrimination or sexual assault as a condition of 
employment, continued employment, promotion, compensation or the receipt of 
benefits. An employee may request this type of agreement and, upon request, will be 
provided at least seven (7) days to change their mind. 


ADDITIONAL EMPLOYEE SUPPORT SERVICES 
Employees may choose to use other support services throughout and following 
instances related to concerns and complaints. The organization provides the following 
for additional assistance: 


• Legal Resources through Special Districts Association of Oregon or a 
personal/private attorney. 


• Counseling and Support Services through the Marion Soil and Water 
Conservation District’s current health plan if offered. 


This policy was adopted by a 5-0 vote of the Board of Directors at its regularly 
scheduled meeting on January 8, 2020. 


Signed by Terry Hsu, Chair 



https://www.oregon.gov/boli/CRD/Pages/C_Crcompl.aspx





